From: "Quayle, Bruce" <bruce.quayle@vancouver.ca>
To: "McDonald, Erica" <Erica.McDonald@vancouver.ca>
"Collins, Tim" <Tim.Collins@vancouver.ca>
"Li, Jessica" <jessica.li@vancouver.ca>
CC: "Marousek, Michael" <Michael.Marousek@vancouver.ca>
Date:  2/26/2020 5:05:41 PM
Subject:  RE: Stanley Park Tennis Courts 1 to 6 - Tennis BC Agreement
Attachments:  Stanley Park Tennis Courts 1 to 6 - 01323393.pdf
01323393.doc

Hi Erica,

As | mentioned with a previous email, | have made changes to the draft agreement based on your comments that this
is not to be a services agreement under which Tennis BC is to be paid fees for services. Here is a comparison
document showing the changes | have made and a Word document containing those changes.

| need still need detailed instructions regarding the financial arrangements the Board would like to put in place for
this contract. This would include details of how revenues are to be dealt with in every way.

Also, let me know if there are further areas within the Park, at or near the courts, including any buildings, that Tennis
BC will get use of and provide me with specific details of how the Board wants to share maintenance responsibilities
with Tennis BC. Do you want to include other requirements such as requirements regarding fencing, netting, tennis
equipment, ....?

Thanks,
Bruce

From: McDonald, Erica

Sent: Wednesday, February 26, 2020 9:20 AM

To: Quayle, Bruce; Collins, Tim; Li, Jessica

Cc: Marousek, Michael

Subject: RE: Stanley Park Tennis Courts 1 to 6 - Tennis BC Agreement

Hello Bruce,
Responding to your question on what to include re use and maintenance of the courts.
| think you have covered use in the draft already.

Re maintenance the following from the RFP specifically addresses that
All costs during the licensed season related to the minor maintenance or preventative maintenance of the courts
and related areas are the sole responsibility of the successful proponent
0 Such costs include but are not limited to, minor court repairs, purchase of cleaning materials and tools,
daily service cleaning of storage area and courts, net replacement, operational signage, etc.

| defer to you to use language best suited for this document to reflect the above.

Further, Jessica has assured me that she has related to you the pressures we are under to deliver the final decision to
the proponents in terms of timing to starting up this year s operations and to address tremendous community
vigilance and concerns we and our Park Board and senior management have received. | wish to emphasize this again
as we journey through these final stages of agreement development. Please let us know what remains to be
contributed to expedite the conclusion of this agreement.

Erica McDonald | Manager Recreation Services
t. 604.257.6945] c. 604.379.8611
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Under the Notice provision can we please include the department and title of whom the notice should be directed to.
A no retail provision should be included as well.

Thanks and have a great day!
Tim

From: McDonald, Erica

Sent: Thursday, February 13, 2020 2:47 PM

To: Li, Jessica; Collins, Tim

Cc: Quayle, Bruce

Subject: RE: Stanley Park Tennis Courts 1 to 6 - Tennis BC Agreement

| have made some comments and suggested edits.
Tim there are areas under your prevue to review.

Question there is no reference to signage, sponsorship requirements/processes, to the storage room access or to
adherence to the program plan as supplied by the vendor in response to the RFP in this document. Should there be?

Erica McDonald | Manager, Recreation Services
Hillcrest Centre

604.257.6945

604.379.8611 c

From: Li, Jessica

Sent: 13 February 2020 14:01

To: McDonald, Erica; Collins, Tim

Cc: Quayle, Bruce

Subject: FW: Stanley Park Tennis Courts 1 to 6 - Tennis BC Agreement

Hi Erica and Tim,

Please see attached draft agreement from Legal.

Please provide your comments, and address any of the questions that Bruce Quayle has highlighted in red.
Thank you,

Jessica

From: Quayle, Bruce

Sent: Thursday, February 13, 2020 11:52 AM

To: Li, Jessica

Subject: Stanley Park Tennis Courts 1 to 6 - Tennis BC Agreement

HI Jessica,

Here is a rough draft agreement for this matter. | have highlighted in red the most significant parts of it which require
instructions from our client.

Have a look at it and let s talk.
Regards,

Bruce
htttt
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From: "Quayle, Bruce" <bruce.quayle@vancouver.ca>
To: "Li, Jessica" <jessica.li@vancouver.ca>
"McDonald, Erica" <Erica.McDonald@vancouver.ca>
"Collins, Tim" <Tim.Collins@vancouver.ca>
"Marousek, Michael" <Michael.Marousek@vancouver.ca>
CC: "Su, Susan Jing" <Susanjing.Su@vancouver.ca>
Date:  3/13/2020 1:56:39 PM
Subject:  RE: Proposal
Attachments:  01323393.doc
Stanley Park Tennis Courts 1 to 6 - 01323393.pdf

Hi All,

| have revised the rental fees provisions and made a few other to the draft agreement as shown in the attached
comparison document and contained in the attached Word document.

If you are satisfied with it, please feel free to pass the Word version along to Tennis BC for its consideration.

Bruce

From: Li, Jessica

Sent: Friday, March 13, 2020 1:03 PM

To: McDonald, Erica; Collins, Tim; Marousek, Michael
Cc: Su, Susan Jing; Quayle, Bruce

Subject: RE: Proposal

Hi Erica,

| ve spoken with Mark Roberts and let him know we accept their updated fee proposal and are moving forward on
award to Tennis BC, and that we will be sending him a contract for review soon, possibly later today. He’s aware that
I’ll only be in on Thursday next week.

Thanks,

Jessica

From: McDonald, Erica

Sent: Friday, March 13, 2020 12:21 PM

To: Collins, Tim; Li, Jessica; Marousek, Michael
Cc: Su, Susan Jing; Quayle, Bruce

Subject: RE: Proposal

Folks, | am deep into COVID 19 planning for all of our recreation spaces, programs, etc.

So if Tim is good with the changes then | am as well.
If there is anything non financial just let me know and | will try to look at it later this afternoon.

Erica McDonald | Manager, Recreation Services
Hillcrest Centre

604.257.6945

604.379.8611 ¢

From: Collins, Tim
Sent: 13 March 2020 09:20
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Cc: Su, Susan Jing; Quayle, Bruce
Subject: RE: Proposal

Jessica,
Can you please clarify that Tennis BC is proposed 12% on Net or Gross revenues (I suspect that it is Net)?

Language in the agreement will need to be amended to include the C-19 impact (renegotiation of the $10K subject to
financial review) on year one and that 12% on revenues for years 4 and 5 may also be subject to renegotiation.

| am comfortable with accepting and proceeding with their counter offer with the caveats above.

Thanks Everyone
Tim

From: Li, Jessica

Sent: Thursday, March 12, 2020 5:54 PM

To: McDonald, Erica; Collins, Tim; Marousek, Michael
Cc: Su, Susan Jing; Quayle, Bruce

Subject: FW: Proposal

Hi Erica, Tim and Michael,
Please see email below and attached counter proposal from Tennis BC.

I've also attached a price comparison excel spreadsheet which includes the original proposed price estimates; pricing
based on our new fee structure and percentages; and now their counter proposal using the new fee structure.

| spoke with Mark today and he said they’re just completing the contract for their Richmond courts which involves 4
indoor courts. Their fee structure also includes a base + percentage. Let’s talk tomorrow and see how best to move
forward.

Thanks,

Jessica

From: Mark Roberts [mailto:mroberts@tennisbc.org]
Sent: Thursday, March 12, 2020 5:09 PM

To: Li, Jessica

Subject: Proposal

Hello Jessica
Thanks for the phone call.
Hereis our response to your proposal.

Asyou can imagine we have had a crazy couple of days but | have been able to work with our treasurer to
review your proposal and understand the financial impact potential. We had build some very good financial
models for our Richmond Hub and the Stanley Park RFP and we have a strong understanding of the cost side of
the business. The recent proposa from the park board is a significant change from our proposal and would
have magjor risk to Tennis BC. | have summarized our position on a number of pointsin the attached and added
our counter proposal. As| have been working with Tennis Canada, International tennis federations, our clubs
and our facility today on the Coronavirus issues, please excuse any spelling mistakes or any unclear language, |
wanted to quickly get thisto you.

Feel freeto call for clarification or better yet | could try and make it down to discuss. To be honest tomorrow

might be a challenge and | know you are going away but let me know.
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"Li, Jessica" <jessica.li@vancouver.ca>

"Collins, Tim" <Tim.Collins@vancouver.ca>

"Quayle, Bruce" <bruce.quayle@vancouver.ca>

"McDonald, Erica" <Erica.McDonald@vancouver.ca>

"Marousek, Michael" <Michael.Marousek@vancouver.ca>

"Su, Susan Jing" <Susanjing.Su@vancouver.ca>

3/31/2020 6:08:07 PM

FW: PS20191554 - Agreement (draft) - Stanley Park Tennis Courts
PastedGraphic-1.tiff

PS20191554 - Agreement - Stanley Park Tennis Courts 1-6 (draft) v2 .doc

Hi Tim and Bruce,
Please see Tennis BC’s comments below along with the attached tracked changes they made to the agreement.

Here is a summary with my questions/comments
- Page 2 e - Ithink it southeasterly is correct
Page 2 fiv Tim, is this ok?
Page 3 p termends Dec 31, 2022? (3 years)
Page4 g Tim, is this ok?
Page 7 Revenues - My understanding is base fee or percentage of gross revenue, whichever is higher Is
that correct?
Page 7 What do you think of the additions in section 21 and 22?
Page 7 Bruce, how do we respond to his question in section 23?
Page 10 section 32 Bruce, is this wording ok? Do subcontractors also include any volunteers?
Page 11 section 36 is this wording ok?

Thank you,

Jessica

From: Mark Roberts [mailto:mroberts@tennisbc.org]

Sent: Monday, March 23, 2020 2:31 PM

To: Li, Jessica

Subject: Re: PS20191554 - Agreement (draft) - Stanley Park Tennis Courts

Hi Jessica
| hope you are having a nice time away given the circumstances. | hope you at least get to do some fun things.

Attached is our response to the contract. There are a couple of key issuesthat | have highlighted in the |ease
with some clarification written which you can delete asneeded. | want to explain them here in this letter as
well.

1. Financial terms. Asper our conversation on the phone, | don’t know if | explained well enough our proposal
and as such have adjusted the wording slightly. If you did understand it then there is no explanation needed but
| will outline it anyhow.

Our financial proposal includes the guaranteed minimums as outlined but the 12% is over and above the
minimum rent. In other words, once the minimum rent threshold is met, then we pay the 12% on sales over the
natural breakpoint

ie $12,500/12%= $104,166.67. From that point on the park board received 12% of al revenue as outlined in

the contract.
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Hopefully that’s how you understood that portion but that was our intent.

2. For obvious reasons, the current tennis season isin real jeopardy. | believe the park board locked the courts
today. We clearly won’t be running any programs April 1 and likely not until July earliest. We believe the
Stanley Park Tennis Tournament will not be held due to planning requirements, sponsor challenges and the fact
that we will likely be laying off some staff until we know what happens with our funding.

We propose that this current year be on a 12% fee basis only starting two weeks after we can operate the courts
(that allows usto get staffing organized and programs marketed).

We have aso added in future years to some kind of prorated feesin case, god forbid, something like this
happens again.

I know the park board has its hands full right now, as do we, but eventually thiswill be agreat program and |
look forward to the partnership.

Best regards
Mark

Mark Roberts
CEO Tennis BC
www.tennisbc.org
604 737 3086 #9

On Mar 20, 2020, at 3:36 PM, Li, Jessica <jessica.li@vancouver.ca> wrote:

Hi Mark,

| hope you are all doing well. 1 m pleased to let you know we have approval to move forward and contract with
Tennis BC for PS20191554 Provision of Services for Stanley Park Tennis Court Management. Please see attached
Agreement for your review. Let me know if you have any questions. | will be away next week, returning March 30th,

Take care,

Jessica Li

Buyer, Supply Chain Management
City of Vancouver

604.257.8411
Jessica.li@vancouver.ca

From: Mark Roberts [mailto:mroberts@tennisbc.org]
Sent: Thursday, March 12, 2020 5:09 PM

To: Li, Jessica

Subject: CM: Proposal

Hello Jessica
Thanks for the phone call.

Hereis our response to your proposal.
City of Vancouver - FOI 2021-120 - Page 559 of 874






City of Vancouver - FOI 2021-120 - Page 561 of 874






























































































































































































































City of Vancouver - FOI 2021-120 - Page 635 of 874



From: Ma, Mary (Park Board)

Sent: Friday, June 19, 2020 11:08 AM

To: Araujo, Sev

Cc: Sangalang, Ellen; Collins, Tim; Erickson, Zack

Subject: RE: Tennis BC 3 year Storage Licence and Tennis Management contract (RFP PS20191554)

Hello Sev
Please see scanned copy and let me know, if it’s good enough at 600dpi.

Cheers
Mary

From: Araujo, Sev

Sent: Friday, June 19, 2020 10:52 AM

To: Ma, Mary (Park Board)

Cc: Sangalang, Ellen; Collins, Tim; Erickson, Zack

Subject: Re: Tennis BC 3 year Storage Licence and Tennis Management contract (RFP PS20191554)

What are chances of

1) scanning copy at 300dpi or higher
2) mailing one origina to TennisBC
3) 2nd original into Leasing filing tray outside Tim s office

Again you’re the best!!
Sev

My apologies for the brevity of my email, it isbein
sent from my iPhone

On Jun 19, 2020, at 10:39 AM, Ma, Mary (Park Board) wrote:

\u-257 ?
| got Shauna s signature.

Mary

From: Araujo, Sev

Sent: Thursday, June 18, 2020 4:56 PM

To: Sangalang, Ellen

Cc: Ma, Mary (Park Board)

Subject: RE: Tennis BC 3 year Storage Licence and Tennis Management contract (RFP PS20191554)

That would be ideal, but no rush as we have their signature at that s my main concern.

Shauna is not aware of this agreement and will need some context. Let me write up an email and cc
everyone today

Sev Araujo
Manager, Commercial Operations City of Vancouver - FOI 2021-120 - Page 636 of 874



Vancouver Park Board, City of Vancouver
0. 604 257 8436 / f. 604 257 8427
Email: Sev.Araujo@vancouver.ca

From: Sangalang, Ellen

Sent: Thursday, June 18, 2020 3:58 PM

To: Araujo, Sev

Cc: Ma, Mary (Park Board)

Subject: RE: Tennis BC 3 year Storage Licence and Tennis Management contract (RFP PS20191554)

Hi Sev,

It needs Shauna s original signature, correct? In that case, we need to get that to Shauna today |
believe she is in the office and if Mary can pass it on to her, that would be great!

From: Araujo, Sev

Sent: Thursday, June 18, 2020 3:42 PM

To: Ma, Mary (Park Board); Sangalang, Ellen

Cc: Collins, Tim; Erickson, Zack; Marousek, Michael

Subject: RE: Tennis BC 3 year Storage Licence and Tennis Management contract (RFP PS20191554)

Thank you Mary!

Ellen, can you please get Shauna to sign and then we will coordinate filing in office (originals in tray on
top of filing cabinet outside Tim s office), and copies to Legal, Clerks and original back to Tennis BC.

Sev Araujo

Manager, Commercial Operations
Vancouver Park Board, City of Vancouver
0. 604 257 8436 / f. 604 257 8427
Email: Sev.Araujo@vancouver.ca

From: Ma, Mary (Park Board)

Sent: Thursday, June 18, 2020 2:30 PM

To: Marousek, Michael; Araujo, Sev

Subject: FW: Tennis BC 3 year Storage Licence and Tennis Management contract (RFP PS20191554)

Hello Sev and Michael
Please see attachment: Tennis BC contract.

The original copies are on Ellen s desk.

Cheers
Mary

From: Marousek, Michael

Sent: Wednesday, June 17, 2020 1:15 PM

To: Araujo, Sev

Cc: Collins, Tim; McDonald, Erica; Ma, Mary (Park Board); Erickson, Zack

Subject: RE: Tennis BC 3 year Storage Licence and Tennis Management contract (RFP PS20191554)

Thank you Sev for the quick turnaround on this, hopefully we will get Tennis BC up and running by July 1
to align with our Outdoor Sports Permitting.

Will do.
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Michael

From: Araujo, Sev

Sent: Wednesday, June 17, 2020 12:53 PM

To: Marousek, Michael

Cc: Collins, Tim; McDonald, Erica; Ma, Mary (Park Board); Erickson, Zack

Subject: RE: Tennis BC 3 year Storage Licence and Tennis Management contract (RFP PS20191554)

Hi Michael,

Attached is the final agreement with your changes and typos corrected. Note effective date June 15;
easier for us to track start date.

Two executed copies please. Have them either mailed or dropped off at Beach and then we will
coordinate signatures and filling and copy back to Tennis BC.

Thank you for your efforts.
(email as of 12:52 pm disregard all others)
Sev

Sev Araujo

Manager, Commercial Operations
Vancouver Park Board, City of Vancouver
0. 604 257 8436 / f. 604 257 8427
Email: Sev.Araujo@vancouver.ca

From: Marousek, Michael

Sent: Friday, June 12, 2020 8:30 AM

To: Araujo, Sev; McDonald, Erica

Cc: Collins, Tim

Subject: RE: Tennis BC 3 year Storage Licence and Tennis Management contract (RFP PS20191554)
Importance: High

Thank you for the drafting up the agreement Sev.
The Licence Agreement has been signed and | am going through the list of actions indicated in the
document with Tennis BC — see attached for your records.

As for the office licence agreement, | would like to propose the following amendments:

Effective date: June 19th (hopefully aligns with the date they get the key to access the space and
it provides them with some time to set up prior to opening the reservation system on July 1)
Term: end on Dec 31, 2022 (to align with the Agreement)

Page 2, under Grant of Licence, months is missing after the (11); change the end of term date
to Dec 31, 2022

Page 7, change the organization s name from Stanley Park Tennis Club (Society) to Tennis BC
(Society)

Schedule A indicates with an arrow Room 124A Exterior Storage Area; however, the room they
should be getting, as per Tim as well as Page 1, is Room 142 Tennis Pro Shop

Erica, could you please review at your earliest convenience and provide your comments?
Happy Friday!!

Michael

From: Araujo, Sev .
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Sent: Thursday, June 11, 2020 6:21 PM

To: Marousek, Michael

Cc: McDonald, Erica; Collins, Tim

Subject: Tennis BC 3 year Storage Licence and Tennis Management contract (RFP PS20191554)

Hi Michael,

Attached is a licence agreement | came up with for Tennis BC for room 142 at 8901 Stanley Park Drive
(Schedule A) based on the agreement Legal did last Fall for SPTC in Room 124A in the same building. |
put in an effective date of July 1 2020 ending May 31 2023 assuming it mimics the SP Tennis Court
Management Contract. Please review with Erica and let me know of any changes you may want.

| haven t seen an executed contract for the court management contract yet and assuming its executed
(?). If you haven t sent it to Tim we need it for PB files so we can also tie it to attached (Tim please
action for follow up, if you haven’t already)

Waiting for REFM to get Locksmith to create 4 sets of keys; hopefully next week
Thank you
Sev

Sev Araujo

Manager, Commercial Operations
Vancouver Park Board, City of Vancouver
0. 604 257 8436 / f. 604 257 8427
Email: Sev.Araujo@vancouver.ca

From: Marousek, Michael

Sent: Thursday, June 11, 2020 2:41 PM
To: Araujo, Sev

Subject: RE: questions

| appreciate it Sev.

| am trying to stay ahead of this as Tennis BC is hoping to start on July 1 (if we get the green light from
BPOC to restart permitting) and there are several items in the license agreement | need to execute
before they can start.

Let me know if you have any updates for me.

Have a nice day,
Michael

From: Araujo, Sev

Sent: Wednesday, June 10, 2020 5:44 PM
To: Marousek, Michael

Subject: RE: questions

Hi Michael,

| have been dealing with some other things. | blocked off time for this tomorrow. Sorry

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

Sent: Wednesday, June 10, 2020 3:36 PM
To: Araujo, Sev

Subject: RE: questions

Hi Sev,
Hope you are well.

Do you have any updates on the below agreement?
Any luck getting the key back?

Have a nice day,
Michael

From: Marousek, Michael

Sent: Friday, June 5, 2020 4:51 PM
To: Araujo, Sev

Cc: Collins, Tim

Subject: RE: questions

Hi Sev,

Here is the info you need to create the agreement for the room that wasn’t captured in the License
Agreement.

1. Our legal entity & address are: Tennis British Columbia, 200-112 3rd Ave., Vancouver, BC
V5T 1C8
2. Term: 3 year term starting on May 7, 2020
3. Proposed use: The space in question will be used as our Tennis BC office space. We would
need to have occupancy of this space year round if possible in order to store our supplies and
equipment there during the off season.
More specifically we would use the space for:
1. Office area/work space for our day to day employee to use
2. Check inareafor court participants, particularly if they require assistance with our
online platform
3. Office & meeting areafor Tennis BC team members & coaches working at Stanley Park
4. 1t will house our computer/phone/I T equipment which will need to be locked up after
hours
5. 1t will house our coaching supplies such as tennis balls, hoppers, baskets, racquets,
mini-nets, etc.
6. It will house our cleaning supplies for the courts also, sweeper, disinfecting supplies,
etc.

Let me know if you need anything else.

When do you think you could have the agreement drafted and the key for the room?
They will want to align with our proposed start for permitted outdoor activities on July 1 (confidential).

Have a great weekend,
Michael

From: Araujo, Sev

Sent: Monday, June 1, 2020 3:11 PM
To: Marousek, Michael

Cc: Collins, Tim

Subject: RE: questions
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I’m waiting to hear back from Doug by end of the week, If not | will get locksmith out

Sev Araujo

Manager, Commercial Operations
Vancouver Park Board, City of Vancouver
0. 604 257 8436 / f. 604 257 8427 hael,

Email: Sev.Araujo@vancouver.ca

From: Marousek, Michael

Sent: Monday, June 01, 2020 11:17 AM
To: Araujo, Sev

Subject: RE: questions

Hi Sev,
| am waiting to receive the information you requested from Tennis BC.
I would like to see the storage room — did you get the key yet?

Michael

From: Araujo, Sev

Sent: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 4:00 PM
To: Marousek, Michael; Collins, Tim

Cc: McDonald, Erica

Subject: RE: questions

Ok
Need

- Legal entity and address
-Term
- Use

Please refer to document | sent you and note its not VTA, its SPTC

Sev Araujo

Manager, Commercial Operations
Vancouver Park Board, City of Vancouver
0. 604 257 8436 / f. 604 257 8427
Email: Sev.Araujo@vancouver.ca

From: Marousek, Michael

Sent: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 10:42 AM
To: Araujo, Sev; Collins, Tim

Cc: McDonald, Erica

Subject: RE: questions

That sounds great Sev.

Will you go ahead and create license agreement? Can you estimate how long it may take so | can brief
Tennis BC accordingly?

| don’t think they need to pay for the space. The VTA got a slightly larger space for $1. That may be the
right way to go about it.

The keys can be dropped off at Creekside. _
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Michael

From: Araujo, Sev

Sent: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 10:38 AM
To: Marousek, Michael; Collins, Tim

Cc: McDonald, Erica

Subject: RE: questions

To keep things clean, | think it would be best that we supply Tennis BC with a separate licence
agreement for the space outside the operating agreement. The agreement would be exact same
storage agreement as the one we sent Stanley Park Tennis Club in October.

Just need to know if they will pay for space and the dates they are allowed to use space. We can turn it
around pretty quickly and Shauna will need to sign

| will need to get keys from original contractor. Where do you want them dropped off

Sev Araujo

Manager, Commercial Operations
Vancouver Park Board, City of Vancouver
0. 604 257 8436 / f. 604 257 8427
Email: Sev.Araujo@vancouver.ca

From: Marousek, Michael

Sent: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 10:23 AM
To: Araujo, Sev; Collins, Tim

Cc: McDonald, Erica

Subject: RE: questions

Hi Sev,

Approved and executed contract - yes. Insurance — not yet; however, | can request it.

Site visit would help us confirm the room is available, cleared out, and meant for Tennis BC as specified
in the RFP.

As Tim said, we would then want to amend the License Agreement to capture this.

Michael

From: Araujo, Sev

Sent: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 10:18 AM
To: Marousek, Michael; Collins, Tim

Cc: McDonald, Erica

Subject: RE: questions

Do you have an approved, executed contract and insurance?

Sev Araujo

Manager, Commercial Operations
Vancouver Park Board, City of Vancouver
0. 604 257 8436 / f. 604 257 8427
Email: Sev.Araujo@vancouver.ca

From: Marousek, Michael

Sent: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 10:15 AM
To: Collins, Tim; Araujo, Sev

Subject: RE: questions

Is one of you available for a site visit today? | am at Creekside and can swing by any time.
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One other question — can | get keys for the room so Tennis BC can start moving in.

Michael

From: Collins, Tim

Sent: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 9:41 AM
To: Marousek, Michael

Subject: Re: questions

| believe so, asite visit may be in order to confirm and can amend accordingly
Sev was handling the SP building items
Tim

Sent from my iPhone

On May 20, 2020, at 9:33 AM, Marousek, Michael wrote:

\u-257 ?
Tim,

| find an old email that shows VTA should occupy room 124A.
Can you please confirm this?
Shall | assume that if this is correct, Tennis BC can occupy room 142?

Michael

From: Collins, Tim

Sent: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 9:25 AM
To: Marousek, Michael

Subject: RE: questions

Hello Michael,
Room 142, of the drawing attached, | believe VTA is occupying a portion of the area as well.
Tim

From: Marousek, Michael

Sent: Tuesday, May 19, 2020 2:59 PM
To: Collins, Tim

Subject: RE: questions

Sounds good Tim, please let me know when you hear back — hopefully by 9am tomorrow.
| do recall meeting with the VTA to sign an agreement for one of the two rooms.

M

From: Collins, Tim

Sent: Tuesday, May 19, 2020 11:02 AM
To: Marousek, Michael

Subject: RE: questions

Checking with Sev on this as SP Brewing is his item, also, | believe the other tennis group is
also using the space as well.

Tim

From: Marousek, Michael
Sent: Tuesday, May 19, 2020 10:14 AM City of Vancouver - FOI 2021-120 - Page 643 of 874



To: Collins, Tim
Subject: RE: questions
Importance: High

Hi Tim,

Please see Erica’s and Jessica’s comments attached to this email.
| have a meeting with Mark (Tennis BC) tomorrow at 9.30am so | am trying to collect all
pertinent information.

Does the room Erica is referring to exist and available for the SP Tennis Courts lease
holder?

Michael

From: Collins, Tim

Sent: Friday, May 15, 2020 10:51 AM
To: Marousek, Michael

Subject: RE: questions

See comments in Blue below

From: Marousek, Michael

Sent: Thursday, May 14, 2020 4:11 PM
To: Collins, Tim

Subject: RE: questions

Thank you Tim!
| added a few comments in GREEN.
Still feel like it’s my first month in this position every time | dive into another specific area...

M

From: Collins, Tim

Sent: Thursday, May 14, 2020 9:11 AM
To: Marousek, Michael

Subject: RE: questions

See comments in RED

From: Marousek, Michael

Sent: Wednesday, May 13, 2020 3:32 PM
To: Collins, Tim

Subject: RE: questions

Hi Tim,

Would you be able to make comments/notes in an email today or tomorrow and then we
can decide if we should follow up with a phone call?

Michael

From: Collins, Tim

Sent: Wednesday, May 13, 2020 3:26 PM
To: Marousek, Michael

Subject: RE: questions

Hey Michael,

My apologies for the delay in getting back to you, when would you like to discuss this?
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Tim

From: Marousek, Michael

Sent: Monday, May 11, 2020 4:39 PM
To: Collins, Tim

Subject: FW: questions

Hi Tim,

Can you please help me answering some questions in Mark’s email below?

Tennis BC has officially been awarded the contract.

| am planning a conference call with Mark on Wednesday and am wondering if you and |
could connect on Wednesday?

Thank you,
Michael

From: Mark Roberts [mailto:mroberts@tennisbc.org]
Sent: Monday, May 11, 2020 1:40 PM

To: Marousek, Michael

Cc: Sarah Kadi; Rosemary Erb

Subject: [EXT] questions

City of Vancouver security warning: Do not click on links or open
attachments unless you were expecting the email and know the content is
safe.

Hi Michael

| hope you had a nice weekend and enjoyed the weather.

| understand the tennis courts were packed which is great as long as the rules were
followed.

Aswe now prepare to open our Hub at Stanley Park we need to get on site to see what
isavailableto us. We have some urgency to these questions as we prepare our set up
and storage and emergency preparation requirements.

Please see this list and advise me how best to proceed:

1. Accesstothe small office on site (isit locked currently and who has the keys
for us?) (Isthisthe space under the SP Brewing Building?) | supposeitis—|
have never been on the premises (beyond the tennis courts). | haven’t seen
anything regarding this space in the License Agreement though. Are they
supposed to get accessto it?

Not sure why they are asking about it was it in the proposal?, Jessica can
confirm
2. A list of contacts from the park board and city for avariety of requirements we
might have Would it be safe to say that my position is the main contact and | can then
channel requests to Guy and John? | would prefer to know what is happening if | am to
oversee the Agreement. What’s Guy’s title/department? Supervisor of Parks
Maintenance
- various emergency issues Guys Pottinger / John Odong
- animal issues Guys Pottinger / John Odong
- court cleaning, safety, repairs Guys Pottinger / John Odong

3. Signage removal (current) and approval process for new signage (Erin Embly,
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Malcolm Bromley
General Manager - Vancouver Board of Parks and Recreation

From: Park Board GM's Office

Sent: Thursday, February 27, 2020 5:46 PM

To: PB Commissioners

Cc: PB SLT (Senior Leadership Team) - DL; McDonald, Erica

Subject: Tennis Management Services in Stanley Park RFP - Board Update *CONFIDENTIAL*
Sensitivity: Confidential

Dear Commissioners,

As follow-up to the Tennis Management Services briefing memo sent on November 26, 2019 (see below), |
am writing to advise that through the procurement process, Tennis BC has been identified as the successful
proponent.

In recognition of the positive feedback received about the previous operators who provided tennis
management services in Stanley Park for the past 20 years, Tennis BC has indicated that they would
explore options to keep these operators involved to ensure a smooth transition for past clients. Staff are
continuing to respond to user concerns around securing court access for their programs and tournaments
for the 2020 season, and Tennis BC has been in dialogue with these users as well to provide assurances
around continued access.

Please note that this information remains confidential until an agreement has been finalized and all
proponents are informed. It is expected that this announcement can be made soon as the new contract
does not involve any changes in park use and so will not need to go to the Board for approval before
awarding. We are looking forward to this partnership with Tennis BC over the next few seasons while staff
work on developing a citywide Sport Court Management Plan.

Regards,

Malcolm Bromley
General Manager - Vancouver Board of Parks and Recreation

From: Park Board GM's Office

Sent: Tuesday, November 26, 2019 10:51 AM

To: PB Commissioners

Cc: PB SLT (Senior Leadership Team) - DL; PB Communications

Subject: Tennis Management Services in Stanley Park RFP - Board Briefing Memo

Dear Commissioners,

The purpose of this memo is to notify you of the intent to issue a Request For Proposals (RFP) for the
seasonal management of six of the seventeen public tennis courts in Stanley Park over the next three years
(2020-2022). Through this service contract, the public is offered lessons, reserved courts, and organized
play from April to September at the six tennis courts located adjacent to the Stanley Park Restaurant and
Brewery. These are currently the only public courts in Vancouver that can be booked in advance (for a fee),
with no membership or specific program registration required.

The last procurement process occurred in 2008, and the only bid received came from the same operators
who had been jointly providing tennis management services in Stanley Park since 1999. In December 2008,
the Board approved awarding these operators a new contract for the 2009 season, with an option to extend
for an additional four seasons. Since then, this service arrangement has been extended multiple times.

One of the actions identified in the VanPlay Playbook is the development of a Sport Court Management Plan
to manage use, access, and demand. This initiative will include reviewing the current model of contracting
with third party operators for the provision of pay tennis services. In the meantime, while this review is
undertaken and a plan is developed, a new agreement is required to ensure continuity of service for the next
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5/8/2020 8:50:40 AM
Fwd: [EXT] Stanley Park tennis concession

Morning Erica,
Can you please begin drafting a Commissioner briefing on the Stanley Park Tennis situation as soon
as possible.

Thanks
Daisy

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Chan, Cheryl" <Cheryl.Chan@vancouver.ca>

Date: May 8, 2020 at 8:37:50 AM PDT

To: "Chin, Daisy" <daisy.chin@vancouver.ca>, "Ulmer,

Christine" <Christine.Ulmer@vancouver.ca>

Cc: "Bromley, Malcolm" <Malcolm.Bromley@vancouver.ca>, "Wilton,
Shauna" <shauna.wilton@vancouver.ca>

Subject: Fwd: [EXT] Stanley Park tennis concession

\u-257 ? Hi Daisy/Christine,

Further to the previous feedback shared re: the SP Tennis procurement/announcement process,
please note Comr. Dumont is now requesting some clarity on the issues being raised. I've let
him know staff are working on an update.

FYI, in addition to the example below which is primarily just questioning the provider change,
Comrs have received emails with concerns about the Tennis BC contract, their stated mission to
take over more courts, and its alignment with PB principles.

BTW - 1200 signatures on the Change.org petition.

Thanks,

C.

Cheryl Chan | she, her, hers

Manager, Executive Office & Board Relations
Office of the General Manager

Vancouver Park Board
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| respectfully acknowledge that I live, work and play in the traditional territories of the
x¥mabkwayam (Musqueam), skwxwu7mesh (Squamish), and selilwitulh (Tsleil-Waututh) Coast
Salish peoples.

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Chan, Cheryl" <Cheryl.Chan@vancouver.ca>
Date: May 8, 2020 at 8:27:03 AM PDT

To: "Dumont, Camil" <Camil.Dumont@vancouver.ca>
Cc: Park Board GM's Office <pbgmo@vancouver.ca>
Subject: Re: [EXT] Stanley Park tennis concession

\u-257 ? Hello Comr. Dumont,
Staff are working on an update.

Thanks,

C.

Cheryl Chan | she, her, hers

Manager, Executive Office & Board Relations
Office of the General Manager

Vancouver Park Board

t: m:
e:

| respectfully acknowledge that | live, work and play in the traditional territories of the

x¥mabkwayam (Musqueam), skwxwu7mesh (Squamish), and selilwitulh (Tsleil-Waututh) Coast
Salish peoples.

On May 8, 2020, at 8:26 AM, Dumont, Camil <Camil.Dumont@vancouver.ca> wrote:

\u-257 ? Hi all -

This Stanley Park tennis situation has a few Commissioners asking me for clarity. | haven't a
clear and comprehensive grasp on the issues and thus | email to request an overview from staff
as to what exactly is going on here re Stanley Park tennis contracts, Tennis BC and any other
relevant info. There are mixed messages and a few different issues at hand. A breakdown from
PB perspective would be very helpful. Please send to all Commissioners when it's available,
thank you very much.

Camil
Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

City of Vancouver - FOI 2021-120 - Page 653 of 874


















VANCOUVER
BOARD OF
PARKS AND
RECREATION

November 26, 2019
MEMO TO : Park Board Commissioners

FROM : Malcolm Bromley
General Manager, Vancouver Board of Parks and Recreation

SUBJECT : Tennis Management Services in Stanley Park - RFP

Dear Commissioners,

The purpose of this memo is to notify you of the intent to issue a Request For Proposals (RFP)
for the seasonal management of six of the seventeen public tennis courts in Stanley Park over
the next three years (2020-2022). Through this service contract, the public is offered lessons,
reserved courts, and organized play from April to September at the six tennis courts located
adjacent to the Stanley Park Restaurant and Brewery. These are currently the only public
courts in Vancouver that can be booked in advance (for a fee), with no membership or specific
program registration required.

The last procurement process occurred in 2008, and the only bid received came from the same
operators who had been jointly providing tennis management services in Stanley Park since
1999. In December 2008, the Board approved awarding these operators a new contract for the
2009 season, with an option to extend for an additional four seasons. Since then, this service
arrangement has been extended multiple times.

One of the actions identified in the VanPlay Playbook is the development of a Sport Court
Management Plan to manage use, access, and demand. This initiative will include reviewing
the current model of contracting with third party operators for the provision of pay tennis
services. In the meantime, while this review is undertaken and a plan is developed, a new
agreement is required to ensure continuity of service for the next few seasons.

To support an open, transparent, and competitive procurement process, an RFP will be issued
for the 2020-2022 tennis seasons. In addition to requiring that the successful proponent provide
lessons, organize tournaments, and permit the courts, the new RFP will clarify current
expectations around risk management, equity, inclusion, access, accommodation of special
events, and other considerations to ensure alignment with Park Board and City of Vancouver
policies and priorities. In recognition of the operator’s need to prepare for the next season, staff
are working to expedite this procurement process.

Regards,

Malcolm Bromley
General Manager - Vancouver Board of Parks and Recreation

lem/clc

Copy to:  PB Senior Leadership Team, PB Communications

Vancouver Board of Parks and Recreation * 2099 Beach Ave. ¢ Vancouver, BC * V6G 1Z4
3-1-1 or 604-873-7000 (outside Vancouver) * vancouverpar@t&%f vgﬁg&m@j@@{mrﬂ@gc_tpage 659 of 874














































































4575 Clancy Loranger Way, V5Y 2M4

t. 604.257.6945] c. 604.379.8611

| am grateful to live and work on the unceded, ancestral territories of the Musqueam, Squamish and Tsleil
Waututh Nations

<image001.jpg>

[facebook.com]

<image002.jpg>

[twitter.com]
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s.22(1)

2/1/2020 7:14:08 PM
[EXTERNAL] Tennis in Stanley Park

City of Vancouver Cybersecurity WARNING: This is an external email. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hello Michael,

| am a member of VTA and heard that you might be a good person to contact regarding the proposals
for Tennis in Stanley Park this summer.

(pardon the different colour fonts, has no meaning except that it changed while | was editing and |
couldn't fixit:) ).

>>

>> | want to express my full support and genuine hope that Gayle Dobson and Gordon Cheng be
accepted to

>> continue to run the fabulous tennis programs they’ve developed and run for so many years in
Stanley Park. They have created a warm, welcoming atmosphere and a vibrant tennis community in
Stanley Park that works very well! There is an old saying “if it ain’t broke, don’t fix it’ . And/or if the
Parks Board have concerns, give G&G an opportunity to address them. New people will create a
whole new set of problems, of that you can be sure!

>> As a long time user of their programs | have no complaints about Gayle and Gord and their
operation! (except the rain which as you know has nothing to do with them).

>> | have participated in their drills, private lessons, tournaments, Team Tennis and rented courts
from them for well over 20 years.

>> As well, | belong to the VTA (Vancouver Tennis Association, for LGBTQ and allies). As a club we
have rented those 6 courts for our 4 play nights a week and run tournaments using those courts as
well. We've fostered a strong working relationship with Gayle and Gord for over 20 years and have
always appreciated their flexibility, accessibility and willingness to support tennis for LGBTQ people.
They’ve been fantastic to work with!

> | understand that Tennis BC is one of the bidders hoping to take over Tennis in Sp as well as at
other public courts in Vancouver. While | am sure this idea has numerous benefits, | am opposed to
the idea of one organization monopolizing public tennis courts . Diverse styles makes the world go
around and opportunities for small biz individuals is a great thing! It would be sad to take that
opportunity from skilled and passionate tennis coaches/players like Gayle and Gord who've run a
great programs for so many years!

> Additionally, the personal and friendly atmosphere that G& G have created could well be eroded
and user participation decrease significantly.

>> A big part of the reason | travel from close to Burnaby to SP a few times a week during the
summer, and pay significant $ for parking there, is to partake in the lovely atmosphere that Gord and
Gayle have created there. | will probably play closer to home if they aren’t there .

>> As previously mentioned, if there are changes that the Parks Board would like to see, why not give
G&G a chance to address them rather than disrupting the wonderful tennis atmosphere they’ve
created in Stanley Park. It would be a great loss both for tennis and for all of us who've come to make
SP our tennis home in the summer.

>

>> Please confirm receipt of this letter and what if anything else | can do to support G&G continuing
Tennis at Stanley Park.

>
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Mayor and Council Feedback
Case number: 101013827014 Case created: 2020-03-03, 12:51:00 PM Channel: WEB

Incident Location

Address: 311 UNADDRESSED LOCATION, VANCOUVER, VAN 311
Address2:

Location name:

Original Address: 311 UNADDRESSED LOCATION

Request Details

1. Describe details (who, what, where, when, why):
[Entered by Councillors' Assistant (Jillian Kuzyk). Please copy Cllr. Hardwick on response to resident.]

Hi Colleen,

| appreciate our conversation the other day, and your willingness to follow up on my concerns about the tennis program at
Stanley Park. | hope this results in a decision by the city that ultimately benefits the extensive tennis community at Stanley
Park ? and the broader tennis community throughout the city.

To elaborate on what we discussed, | have two primary concerns:

1 - The possibility that Tennis BC, if it is awarded the contract to manage the pay courts at Stanley Park, plans to use this as
a trial run to convert most if not all the Vancouver public tennis courts from free to paid courts.

2 - The unsettled question of the types of programs Tennis BC plans to run. Based on the organization?s track record, |
question whether they will align with (a) the mission of the Park Board, (b) the desires of the Vancouver recreational tennis
community and (c) the expectations of the several hundred recreational and (somewhat) competitive players who utilize
the Stanley Park courts.

I?ve attached a copy of the RFP. In addition, here?s Tennis BC?s announcement of its plans to operate a facility in
Richmond that | imagine is a pretty accurate model for its plans to operate more widely:

http://www.tennisbc.org/tennis-british-columbia-to-open-facility-in-richmond-this-march/

In the interests of full transparency, | should note that | am a member of the s.22(1) , Which leases five
courts from the Park Board on a seasonal basis (I served on the executive committee for two years), an occasional
participant in Vancouver Tennis Association (VTA) organized play, and have participated in many of the activities and
programs (organized play, tournaments, drills) run by the incumbent tennis concession operators at Stanley Park. When |
say that those activities are extremely popular I?m confident that | represent the opinions of most and perhaps virtually all
of the players who have participated over the years.

While | would be happy to see the incumbents continue to run the concession, | would understand if the city wanted new
blood. But any winner should represent the interests of the tennis community and not an effort at empire building. |
believe the city tried to institute a pay system at multiple locations in the 90s, and | understand that that effort failed in the

face of massive community opposition. I?m pretty sure that there would be similar outcry should the city try a reprise.

| would be happy to discuss my concerns in greater detail with you or anyone else you designate. This email is just to get
my concerns (and that of others | know) on the record.

Best,
s.22(
2. Department:
Page 1l of2
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10.

11.

12,

13.

14,

Mayor and Council

Neighbourhood:
Unknown

Were any other cases or service requests created as a result of this feedback?

No

(Don't ask, just record - did caller indicate they want a call back?):

Yes

Council Item:
Not Applicable

Select category:
Parks and Recreation

Specific area of concern:

Tennis Program

Author Type:
Individual

Correspondence Type:
Original Feedback

Original Client:
s.22(1)

Original Email address:
s.22(1)

Additional Details

[Entered by Councillors' Assistant (Jillian Kuzyk). Please copy Cllr. Hardwick on response to resident.]
Contact Details

Name:

No Name No Name (ps)

Address: ,
Address2:

Phone:

Alt. Phone:

Case Notes

Photo

- no picture -

Email: s.22(1)
Preferred contact method: Either

Page 2 of 2
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Thanks
Mark

Mark Roberts

CEO Tennis BC
www.tennisbc.org [tennisbc.org]
604 737 3086 #9

On May 7, 2020, at 4:59 PM, Li, Jessica <jessica.li@vancouver.ca> wrote:

Hi Mark,

Attached is Agreement PS20191554 for Stanley Park Tennis Courts 1-6. Please review and send me back a signed
copy. (You may send back just the signed signature page if you prefer and | will re-attach the page).

These are the changes from the previous version:
Section 20 has been updated to reflect your option # 1 that you proposed on April 21st,
In the Interpretation section, the word approximately has been added since the dates are not
fixed, and dependent on factors such as weather:
0 —0) —Fennis Season* means the period approximately May 1 to September 30 in each year of
the Term;*“

Let me know if you have any questions.
Thank you,

Jessica Li

Buyer, Supply Chain Management
City of Vancouver

604.257.8411
Jessica.li@vancouver.ca

<PS20191554 - Agreement - Stanley Park Tennis Courts 1-6.pdf>
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TENNIS COURTS USE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is dated for reference May 7, 2020.

BETWEEN:

AND:

VANCOUVER BOARD OF PARKS AND RECREATION
2099 Beach Avenue

Vancouver, B.C.

V6G 174

(the “Park Board”)

TENNIS BRITISH COLUMBIA
200 - 112 East 3" Avenue
Vancouver, B.C.

V5T 1C8

(“Tennis BC™)

WHEREAS:

A. Pursuant to the Vancouver Charter S.B.C. 1953 c. 55, the Board has jurisdiction over

and control of City parks.

. Tennis BC is a non-profit organization incorporated under the laws of British Columbia

that provides a wide range of tennis related services for the promotion and support of
and public participation in recreational and competitive tennis in British Columbia.

. In the latter part of the year 2019, the City, for the Board, issued its Request for

Proposals No. PS20191554 (the “RFP”’) inviting proposals from qualified proponents for
the commercial use of certain tennis courts situated in the City’s Stanley Park (the
“Park™).

. Tennis BC submitted a written proposal in response to the RFP, and, after evaluation of

proposals received, the Board has authorized an agreement as set out herein between
it and Tennis BC in respect of the subject matter of the RFP.

THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises made by the
Parties and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows:

INTERPRETATION

1. In this Agreement, including the recitals, schedules and appendices to this Agreement, the
following words and terms, unless the context otherwise requires, shall have the meanings
set out below:

a) “Agreement” means this written contract, including all schedules, appendices,

{01323393v13} 1
PS20191554
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exhibits and other documents, records and other materials annexed to it and
incorporated into it by reference;

b) “Base Rental Fees” means the minimum amount Tennis BC is to pay the Board
hereunder in Rental Fees in each Tennis Season respectively;

c) “City” means the City of Vancouver, British Columbia;

d) “Confidential Information” has the meaning given below herein;

e) “Contract Documents” means the documents of which this Agreement is comprised,
including the main body hereof and all schedules, appendices and other documents
and materials as may be annexed to it and all documents, records and other materials
which by reference may be incorporated into this Agreement, including the RFP and
the Proposal;

f) “Contractor” has the meaning given below herein and, without limitation to that,
includes all their subcontractors;

g) “Courts” means courts 1 to 6, as shown in bold black outline in Schedule A hereto, of
the 17 tennis courts situated together in the most southerly part of the Park, near the
Beach Avenue entrance to it;

h) “Gross Revenue” means the sum total of all monetary revenues from Tennis BC’s use
of the Courts hereunder without deduction or set-off of any kind, but net applicable
taxes, including without limitation:

i) the total of all monetary payments charged to and payable by Users to Tennis BC
for Tennis Services; and

i) the total of all insurance proceeds paid to Tennis BC for Tennis Services revenues
lost because of business interruption or other casualty, risk or event;

iii) but excluding gratuities/tips that Users may give to Tennis BC Personnel in
connection with Tennis Services provided;

i) “Key Personnel” means Tennis BC’s key personnel, as identified in the Proposal,
performing executive, managerial, operational and administrative functions in its use
of the Courts hereunder and its performance of the Tennis Services;

J) “Park Board Personnel” means the Board’s elected and appointed officers, officials,
employees, agents, contractors and their subcontractors, and volunteers;

k) “Proposal” means Tennis BC’s proposal submitted to the Board in response to the RFP,
now hereby incorporated by reference into this Agreement;

) “Rental Fees” has the meaning given below herein;

m) “RFP” has the meaning given above herein, now hereby incorporated by reference
into this Agreement;

n) “Tennis BC Personnel” means Tennis BC’s officers, officials, directors, employees,

{01323393v13} 2
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agents and Contractors involved in any way directly or indirectly in its use of the
Courts hereunder;

0) “Tennis Season” means the period approximately May 1 to September 30 in each year
of the Term;

p) “Tennis Services” means tennis services to be offered and provided on a fees-for-use
basis to members of the public and to organizations as described in the RFP and the
Proposal;

g) “Term” means the period beginning on the Effective Date and ending on December 31,
2022, and includes any extensions thereto made pursuant to this Agreement;

r) “Users” means the individuals and organizations purchasing Tennis Services from
Tennis BC and thereby by using the Courts through Tennis BC in its use of the Courts
pursuant to this Agreement, and “User” is the singular thereof.

2. In this Agreement, terms such as “herewith”, “herein”, “hereof” and “hereby” refer to
this Agreement in its entirety.

3. The Contract Documents are complementary and what is called for by any one will be as
binding as if called for by all. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between or
among any of the Contract Documents, they will be interpreted in the following order of
priority or preference:

a) this main body contract document;
b) the RFP; and
c) the Proposal.
USE OF THE COURTS
4. Subject to this Agreement, the Board hereby grants to Tennis BC;

a) the exclusive right to use the Courts at all times in each Tennis Season during the
Term for the purpose of providing the Tennis Services there in accordance with the
Contract Documents; and

b) subject to such further terms and conditions as the Board may require, the non-
exclusive right to use such other areas and/or premises within the Park as the Board in
writing may explicitly permit from time to time during the Term for purposes
supporting and connected directly with Tennis BC’s use of the Courts hereunder.

5. By further written agreement, the Parties may extend the Term on an annual basis for up
to two (2) additional and consecutive calendar years, in which case, except as otherwise
agreed in writing between the parties in connection therewith, the terms and conditions
of this Agreement will apply in all respects to the Term as thereby extended.

6. By further written agreement made between them at any time during the Term, the Board
and Tennis BC may from time to time modify the definition of the term *“Courts” as used
herein so that:

{01323393v13} 3
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a)

b)

certain other additional Park Board controlled tennis courts in the City of Vancouver
are to be included within its meaning, after which all such additional tennis courts so
included therein will thereby be subject to this Agreement; or

certain tennis courts previously included within its meaning are thereafter to be
excluded therefrom, after which, except to the extent explicitly provided for herein,
such excluded tennis courts will no longer be subject to this Agreement.

7. Tennis BC represents and warrants that it possesses the necessary skills, knowledge,
qualifications and experience to use the Courts for the purposes provided for herein
competently and to the reasonable satisfaction of the Board.

8. Without limitation to anything else in this Agreement, and in exchange for the rights
granted to it hereunder for use of the Courts, Tennis BC, in its use of the Courts and such
other areas and/or premises within the Park as the Board may from time to time permit
hereunder, will:

a)

b)

f)

9)

h)

use the Courts and such other areas and/or premises only for purposes of providing the
Tennis Services at the Courts in accordance herewith;

use the Courts and such other areas and/or premises in conformity with all laws,
regulations, bylaws and other legal requirements of all levels of government and all
regulatory authorities applicable it in its use of the Courts hereunder;

exercise and use the degree of care, skill and diligence normally applied in the
performance of services of the kind or similar to the Tennis Services;

not to in any way adversely impact or interfere with Board activities within the Park or
with public use of any other parts of the Park;

take reasonable steps, including the conduct of background and police checks, to
ensure that all Tennis BC Personnel participating in its use of the Courts hereunder are
of good character and adequately trained, qualified and competent to perform the
duties assigned to them therein and that they are not in any way dangerous to any
Users or any class of Users;

actively, efficiently, effectively and comprehensively make use of the Courts
hereunder at all times during and throughout each Tennis Season so that the Courts
are used to the fullest extent reasonably possible in relation to the level(s) of User
demand available for the Tennis Services and taking into account adverse weather
conditions reasonably affecting the Courts’ playability;

at all times, without exception, charge and collect from Users in advance, for Tennis
Services to be provided to them, fees in prescribed amounts to be set in advance at
competitive market rates;

prior to the commencement of each Tennis Season, deliver to the Board a
comprehensive written list of the various fees it proposes to charge for the Tennis
Services during the upcoming Tennis Season and thereafter during each Tennis Season
provide the Board with prior written notice of any variations from or changes to the
fees it will charge for any such services and the reasons therefor;
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10.

i) not do or cause anything to be done at any time which could allow any lien, certificate
of pending litigation, judgment or certificate of any court or any mortgage charge,
conditional sale agreement, personal property security interest or encumbrance of any
nature to be imposed or to remain on title to the Park or any other Board or City
property;

J) do all things reasonably necessary to ensure that the Courts are kept in good playing
condition at all times during each Tennis Season during the Term, including keeping
the Courts clean, neat, tidy and free of nuisance at all time therein and immediately
providing the Board with written notice of any repairs or other work or things of the
kind falling within its Courts related areas of responsibility hereunder are reasonably
required in order to put the Courts back into or keep them in good and playable
condition at all times;

k) provide all personnel and all tennis play, instructional and event related equipment
and things, such as balls, racquets and racquet stringing equipment, ball machines,
ball collection devices, umpire chairs, scoring devices and other things, as may be
reasonably necessary for provision of the Tennis Services in accordance with this
Agreement; and

) at the end of each Tennis Season during the Term, leave the Courts and all other
Board premises, property, fixtures and things which are subject to this Agreement in
good and undamaged condition, subject to reasonable wear and tear.

Tennis BC may post signage at and/or near the Courts regarding the Tennis Services, but
always subject to the Board’s prior written approval regarding location and appearance.

In its use of the Courts hereunder, Tennis BC may, with prior written approval from the
Board, sell and/or rent, as the case may be, at reasonable market rates, tennis-racquets
and balls and related services, such as racquet stringing and repair services, as part of the
Tennis Services.

CONTRACTORS

11.

12.

13.

Tennis BC may, at its expense, engage contractors and/or volunteers (in each case a
“Contractor”) to perform services for it in its use of the Courts hereunder, but only for
specific functions or tasks therein, such as, for example, tennis coaching, court
supervision, equipment handling, Courts maintenance, event related staging and
volunteering or accounting, and it may not under any circumstances engage any
Contractor(s) to perform all or substantially all of the managerial, operational,
supervisory and administrative functions involved in Tennis BC’s use of the Court
hereunder.

Tennis BC will administer, coordinate, and manage all services provided by Contractors in
connection with Tennis BC’s use of the Courts hereunder, and will assume full
responsibility to the Board for all work performed by the Contractors in relation to the
Tennis Services and will pay all fees and disbursements of all Contractors.

Nothing in this Agreement will create any contractual relationship between a Contractor
and the Board, and Tennis BC will ensure that all its Contractors understand and
acknowledge in writing that they will participate in Tennis BC’s use of the Courts
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hereunder solely pursuant to their relationship with Tennis BC and that they have no
contractual relationship of any kind with the Board or the City in connection therewith.

PERSONNEL CHANGES

14. Except for any substitutions required by circumstances not within its reasonable control,
Tennis BC will not make Key Personnel changes without providing detailed prior written
notice thereof to the Board.

15. For the purposes of the preceding paragraph, the phrase, *“substitutions required by
circumstances not within its reasonable control””, means substitutions required by illness,
death, injury, pregnancy, medical leave, or termination of employment or contract, but
expressly excludes situations where the Key Personnel member is called upon to perform
services for another client of Tennis BC, its Sub-contractor or their affiliates.

16. The Board may at any time during the Term, if it reasonably believes that any particular
Tennis BC Personnel, including Key Personnel and Contractors, should not or should no
longer be permitted to participate in Tennis BC’s use of the Courts hereunder, the Board
may, in writing, with reasons stated, make a request to that effect, in which case, Tennis
BC will make commercially reasonable efforts to comply with the Board’s request or will
take all reasonable steps to address to the Board’s satisfaction its stated reasons for the
request and provide a remedy in respect thereof.

17. Notwithstanding the foregoing, and regardless of whether any Tennis BC Personnel
changes are the result of a Board request pursuant to this preceding paragraph, the Board
will not be liable to compensate Tennis BC and Tennis BC will not be entitled to receive
any compensation in respect of any additional costs to it connected with personnel
changes during the Term.

PARK BOARD COURTS RELATED RESPONSIBILITIES

18. The Board, at its expense, will supply and maintain the Courts, including their subsurface
foundation, surfacing, painting, lines and play area configurations, nets at the start of the
Tennis Season, net related fixtures, court fencing and gates and standard furnishings such
as benches and garbage/recycling receptacles, so that the Courts are in reasonably good
and ready-for-play condition at all times during each Tennis Season during the Term.

19. The Board, without prior notice to Tennis BC, may at any time from time to time during
the Term, but not more frequently than once per week during the Tennis Season, attend
and enter the Courts and, for its own internal business purposes, monitor and inspect
Tennis BC activities there, but in doing so the Board will do nothing to disrupt or interfere
with those activities or cause any unreasonable distractions to Users or Tennis BC
Personnel therein.

FEES

20. In exchange for the permission granted to it to use the Courts in accordance herewith,
Tennis BC will pay rental fees to the Board as follows:

a) for the 2020 Tennis Season, Tennis BC will pay the Board a rental fee in the amount of

s.17(1) ), plus any applicable taxes;
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21.

22.

23.

24.

b) for the 2021 Tennis Season, Tennis BC will pay the Board a rental fee in the amount of
s.17(1) ) or in an amount equal to 13% of Gross Revenues for
the Tennis Season, whichever is greater, plus any applicable taxes; and

c) for the 2022 Tennis Season, and for each and every additional Tennis Season thereafter
for which the Term is extended hereunder, Tennis BC will pay the Board a rental fee in
the amount of 5.17(1) or in an amount equal to 15% of
Gross Revenues for the Tennis Season, whichever is greater, plus any applicable taxes.

(“Rental Fees™)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event and as a direct result of unforeseeable
circumstances beyond Tennis BC’s reasonable control which adversely affect the level(s) of
User demand available for the Tennis Services or the usability of the Courts hereunder in
any particular Tennis Season, including without limitation, the COVID-19 Pandemic in the
year 2020, Tennis BC is unable pay the Base Rental Fees to the Board without sustaining a
financial loss in respect of that Tennis Season, then, on that basis, the Board, provided it
is satisfied, based on reliable evidence provided to it by Tennis BC, that the claimed
financial loss exists, will negotiate with Tennis BC for a reasonable reduction in the Rental
Fees payable for that Tennis Season so that Tennis BC can to the extent reasonably
possible avoid or minimize such financial loss.

Tennis BC will pay the Rental Fees to the Board by cheque on an annual basis, each time
by one payment made after, but not more than 60 days after, the end of the Tennis
Season.

Tennis BC will deliver each Rental Fees payment to the Board at its address as shown in
this Agreement and at the same time will also deliver to the Board to its satisfaction a
detailed written accounting statement prepared and certified correct by a duly qualified
professional accountant setting out with a detailed breakdown the Gross Revenues for the
most recent Tennis Season.

Tennis BC will create and at its offices maintain a comprehensive, detailed and complete
set of business and accounting records relating specifically to its activities involving its use
of the Courts hereunder and it will make them available to the Board for its inspection at
any time during regular office hours as the Board may request from time to time during
and/or after the Term. This provision will survive expiry or termination of this Agreement.

RELEASE AND INDEMNIFICATION

25.

Tennis BC hereby releases the Board and the City and their officials, officers, employees
and agents from all costs, losses, damages and expenses, including those caused by
personal injury, death, property damage, loss and economic loss arising out of, suffered or
experienced by Tennis BC, its Contractors, and their respective officers, employees and
agents in connection with their use of the Courts under this Agreement.
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26. In undertaking the Services, Tennis BC acknowledges that Tennis BC has inspected the
Courts and, subject to the Board’s obligations hereunder regarding the supply and
maintenance thereof, accepts them on “as-is” basis, and will at all times take all
precautions reasonably necessary to ensure the safety of all Users and Tennis BC
Personnel.

27. Despite any Board insurance, Tennis BC will indemnify the Board and the City and their
successors, assigns, official, employees, agents and authorized representatives and each
of them (in each case an “Indemnified Party”) for and hold them harmless from and
against all costs, losses, claims, damages, actions, and causes of actions (collectively
referred to as "Claims") that an Indemnified Party may sustain, incur, suffer or be put to
at any time either before or after the expiration or termination of this Agreement, that
arise out of errors, omissions or negligent acts of Tennis BC, its Contractors, or their
respective officers, employees or agents under this Agreement excepting always that this
indemnity does not apply to the extent, if any, to which the Claims are caused by errors,
omissions or negligent acts of an Indemnified Party. This indemnity will not affect or
prejudice the Board from exercising any other rights that may be available to it at law or
in equity.

28. The release and indemnity set out above will survive the expiry or sooner termination of
this Agreement.

INSURANCE

29. Prior to commencing the use of the Courts hereunder, Tennis BC will obtain, and
thereafter throughout the Term shall maintain, at its expense, commercial general
liability insurance with a limit of not less than $5,000,000 per occurrence, and a
deductible of not more than $5,000, protecting Tennis BC and Tennis BC Personnel against
claims for personal injury, including death and bodily injury, and property damage or loss,
arising out of the operations of Tennis BC or the actions of Tennis BC or Tennis BC
Personnel. The policy must contain a cross-liability clause in favour of the City of
Vancouver and the Vancouver Board of Parks & Recreation and will explicitly name them
and their officials, employees and agents as additional insureds.

30. All required insurance policies must remain in full force and effect at all times until expiry
or termination of this Agreement and for a period of not less than two years thereafter,
and must:

a) be obtained from and issued by insurers authorized to carry on business within British
Columbia, on terms satisfactory to the City’s Director of Risk Management, acting
reasonably;

b) be primary insurance in respect to the Board and the City, and any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by the Board and the City will be in excess of this insurance and
will not contribute with such policies; and

c) contain a provision that such insurance coverage will not be cancelled or endorsed to
reduce the coverage limits without the insurer giving the Board and the City at least
thirty (30) calendar days prior written thereof, and, for any property insurance carried
by Tennis BC, contain a clause that waives the insurer’s right of subrogation against
the Board and the City and their officials, employees and agents.
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31.

32.

33.

Prior to signing, and immediately following the signature of, this Agreement, Tennis BC
shall have provided, or shall provide, the Board with evidence of all required insurance to
be taken out in the form of one or more certificate(s) of insurance. The certificate(s) of
insurance will identify the Agreement title, number, policyholder and scope of work and
must not contain any qualifications or disclaimers. Proof of insurance, in the form of such
certificate(s) of insurance (or copies of the policy(ies) themselves, if requested), will be
made available to the Board at any time during the Term and thereafter.

Tennis BC will and will ensure that each of its Contractors will provide, at their own cost,
any additional insurance which they are required by law to provide or which they should
reasonably consider necessary.

Neither the providing of insurance by Tennis BC or the Contractors in accordance with this
Agreement, nor the insolvency, bankruptcy or the failure of any insurance company to pay
any claim accruing, will be held to relieve Tennis BC from any other provisions of this
Agreement with respect to liability of Tennis BC or otherwise.

WORKSAFEBC

34.

35.

36.

Tennis BC agrees that it will procure and at all times during the Term will carry and pay
for, full WorkSafeBC coverage required by Applicable Laws for itself and Tennis BC
Personnel engaged in its use of the Courts hereunder, and it will ensure that all
Contractors do the same. Tennis BC agrees that the Board has the unfettered right to set
off the amount of the unpaid premiums and assessments for such WorkSafeBC coverage
against any monies owing by the Board to Tennis BC. The Board will have the right to
withhold payment under this Agreement until the WorkSafeBC premiums, assessments or
penalties in respect of work done or service performed in fulfilling this Agreement have
been paid in full.

Tennis BC will provide the Board with Tennis BC's WorkSafeBC registration number and
clearance letters from WorkSafeBC confirming that Tennis BC and each Sub-contractor are
registered in good standing with WorkSafeBC and that all assessments have been paid to
the date thereof prior to the City and Park Board having any obligation to pay monies
under this Agreement. Tennis BC will indemnify the City and the Board and hold harmless
the Board from all manner of claims, demands, costs, losses, penalties and proceedings
arising out of or in any way related to unpaid WorkSafeBC assessments owing from any
person or corporation engaged by Tennis BC in the performance of this Agreement or
arising out of or in any way related to the failure to observe safety rules, regulations and
practices of WorkSafeBC, including penalties levied by WorkSafeBC.

Tennis BC is hereby appointed and accepts the appointment as the “prime contractor” (as
defined in the Workers Compensation Act (BC) for the Courts or any part of them as a
“multiple employer workplace” within the meaning of that statute and as such will
perform all the duties and responsibilities thereof at all times while the Courts or any part
thereof are a multiple employer workplace as defined therein.

BOARD INFORMATION/APPROVALS

37.

No reviews, approvals or inspections carried out or information supplied by the Board will
derogate from the duties and obligations of Tennis BC (with respect to designs, reviews,
inspections, approvals or otherwise).
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COMMUNICATION BETWEEN TENNIS BC AND BOARD

38. The Board and Tennis BC will communicate with each other, in respect of this Agreement
and the Tennis BC’s use of the Courts hereunder and all matters arising between them in
connection therewith, through the persons they appoint to be their authorized
representatives for purposes thereof (each an “Authorized Representative”).

39. Each of the Board and Tennis BC will forthwith after execution of this Agreement will
provide to the other in writing the name and the detailed contact information of its
Authorized Representative(s) and at all times thereafter will provide timely and detailed
written notice to the other of any changes thereto whenever any changes are made.

NOTICES

40. Any notice required or permitted to be given hereunder to the Board must be delivered to
it by email or by registered mail to the its address set out at the top of this Agreement
and to the attention of its Manager/Director of Recreation Services.

41. Any notice required or permitted to be given hereunder to Tennis BC must be delivered to
it by email to any of the jeKey Personnel or by registered mail to its address set out at the
top of this Agreement.

TERMINATION

42. The Board may terminate this Agreement without prior notice to Tennis BC if at any time
if:

a) Tennis BC has in any way breached this Agreement and has failed to rectify the breach
within a reasonable time, depending on the nature of the breach, after the Board has
given it a written notice of the breach and demand for rectification thereof;

b) Tennis BC becomes insolvent or the subject of any bankruptcy or similar proceedings;
or

¢) Tennis BC ceases to exist or goes out of good standing as a society incorporated under
the laws of BC;

43. The Board may terminate this Agreement on not fewer than six (6) months prior written
notice to Tennis BC if at any time for any reason the Board in its discretion considers it to
be necessary or advisable to discontinue the arrangements provided for herein.

44. Tennis BC may terminate this Agreement without prior notice to the Board if at any time
the Board has in any way breached this Agreement and failed to rectify the breach within
a reasonable time, depending on the nature of the breach, after Tennis BC has given it a
written notice of the breach and demand for rectification thereof.

ASSIGNMENT

45. Tennis BC may not assign this Agreement in whole or in part to any person or organization
except with the prior written consent of the Board, which consent will not be
unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned. Any attempt to assign this Agreement
without such consent will be void and of no effect. However, Tennis BC will be permitted
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to assign this Agreement to any entity into, by or with which the business or assets of
Tennis BC have been merged, acquired, consolidated or re-organized, or any entity which
purchases all or substantially all of the business or assets of Tennis BC, provided always
that Tennis BC first provides the Board with:

a) reasonable particulars of the transaction (permitting the Board to independently verify
the nature of the transaction); and

b) a legally enforceable covenant from the assignee confirming that it is legally bound to
the Board to perform Tennis BC’s obligations under this Agreement.

CONFIDENTIALITY

46.

47.

48.

In connection with its use of the Courts pursuant to this Agreement, Tennis BC may obtain
or have access to certain information, including, but not limited to, technical, financial
and/or business information, which is confidential to the Board, and is the exclusive,
world-wide property of the Board and/or its suppliers and customers (collectively
“Confidential Information”). Excluded from the definition of Confidential Information is:

a) information which is in, or becomes part of, the public domain, not due to Tennis BC’s
breach of this Agreement or Tennis BC’s actions;

b) information which was previously in Tennis BC’s possession and did not originate from
the Board; and

c) information which lawfully becomes available to Tennis BC from a third party not
under an obligation of confidence to the Board regarding such information.

Tennis BC will:

a) not use or reproduce the Confidential Information other than as reasonably necessary
in connection with its use of the Courts hereunder;

b) not, without the prior written consent of the Board given on such terms and conditions
as it prescribes in its sole discretion, disclose or allow access to the Confidential
Information to any person, except to only those of its own employees who have a need
to know the Confidential Information in connection with its use of the Courts
hereunder, and who have been advised of its confidential nature and have agreed to
be bound by the confidentiality and use-restriction provisions herein; and

c) use all precautions reasonably necessary to ensure that any and all Confidential
Information coming into its possession is not used by or disclosed to any unauthorized
persons.

If Tennis BC is required by any law, legal proceeding, or court or government order, to
disclose any Confidential Information, Tennis BC shall limit its disclosure of such
Confidential Information to the extent and purpose legally required, provided that prior to
any disclosure Tennis BC will promptly notify the Board in writing of the existence and the
terms, and conditions of the required disclosure and, at the Board’s request and expense,
co-operate in obtaining a protective order or other assurance that confidential treatment
and restrictions on use will be accorded such Confidential Information.
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49.

50.

51.

52.

The Board is subject to the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British
Columbia), which imposes significant obligations on the Board’s contractors to protect all
personal information collected or acquired from the Board. Tennis BC confirms and
acknowledges its obligations to comply with all obligations imposed on it pursuant to the
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) with respect to
all personal information received from the Board whether as part of the Confidential
Information or otherwise.

Tennis BC acknowledges that in the event of a breach by Tennis BC or any of its
employees of their respective confidentiality obligations pursuant to this provision,
damages alone would not be an adequate remedy. Tennis BC therefore agrees with the
Board that, in addition to and without limiting any other right or remedy it may have, the
Board will have the right to an immediate injunction or other available equitable relief in
any court of competent jurisdiction enjoining any threatened or actual breach of such
obligations.

Tennis BC shall return all copies of the Confidential Information to the Board, in all
tangible forms and media, and delete all Confidential Information resident in any
databases or systems, upon the earliest of the following dates:

a) expiry or earlier termination of this Agreement; or
b) written request of the Board for return of the Confidential Information;

except that Tennis BC shall have the right to retain one copy of the Confidential
Information solely for archival purposes or as otherwise may be required by law, subject
to its ongoing confidentiality and restricted use obligations.

This Section shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement.

NO PROMOTION OF RELATIONSHIP

53.

54.

Tennis BC will not disclose or promote its relationship with the Board, including by means
of any verbal declarations, announcements, sales, marketing or other literature, letters,
client lists, websites, internet domain names, press releases, brochures or other written
materials (the “Communications”) without the express prior written consent of the Board
(except as may be necessary for Tennis BC to perform its obligations under this
Agreement).

Furthermore, Tennis BC undertakes and will cause all of its Contractors to undertake not
to disclose or promote its relationship with the Board in any Communications in a manner
which could suggest or create an association, express or implied, between Tennis BC and
the Board. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Tennis BC will not refer to or
use any website, domain name, official emblem, logo or mascot of the Park Boar or the
City in any Communications, without the express prior written consent of the Board.

NO CONFLICT OF INTEREST

55.

Tennis BC agrees that during the Term Tennis BC will not engage in any conduct which
would or might put the interests of the Board or the City into conflict with the interests of
any other person, whether or not a client of Tennis BC’s. Without limiting the general
scope of this provision and by way of example only, Tennis BC is prohibited from and will
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not provide any services which assist or could be seen to be assisting any person in
responding to a request for proposals or invitation to tender, or otherwise giving that
person an unfair competitive advantage over other proponents or tenderers responding to
a request for proposal or invitation to tender by the Board. Tennis BC now acknowledges
that a breach of this provision could constitute not only a breach of this Agreement but
also a violation of the Competition Act (Canada) and Criminal Code of Canada, and
accordingly, could be punishable as a crime (as well as a breach of contract).

56. Tennis BC now confirms and warrants that there is no officer, director, shareholder,
partner or employee or other person related to Tennis BC’s organization (a “person
having an interest”) or any spouse, business associate, friend or relative of a person
having an interest who is:

a) an elected official or employee of the Board or the City; or

b) related to or has any business or family relationship with an elected official or
employee of the Board or the City, such that there would be any conflict of interest or
any appearance of a conflict of interest in respect of this Agreement or its subject
matter generally.

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

57. This Agreement is a licence agreement and Tennis BC and its Contractors, and their
officers, directors, shareholders, partners, personnel, affiliates and agents are not
partners, appointees, employees or agents of the Board.

58. Tennis BC will not represent to anyone that Tennis BC has any authority to bind the Board
in any way or that Tennis BC is any form of Park Board representative or agent.

INDEPENDENT LEGAL ADVICE

59. Tennis BC acknowledges that Tennis BC has been given the opportunity to seek
independent legal advice before executing this Agreement.

TIME FOR PERFORMANCE
60. Time shall be of the essence of this Agreement.
GENERAL

61. No action or failure to act by the Board shall constitute a waiver of any right or duty
under this Agreement, or constitute an approval or acquiescence in any breach hereunder,
except as may be specifically agreed in writing by the Board.

62. The invalidity, illegality or unenforceability of any portion or provision of this Agreement
or the occurrence of any event rendering any portion or provision of this Agreement void
shall in no way affect the validity or enforceability of any other portion or provision of this
Agreement. Any void portion or provision shall be deemed severed from this Agreement
and the balance of this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if this Agreement
did not contain the particular portion or provision held to be void. The Parties further
agree to amend this Agreement to replace any stricken provision with a valid provision
that comes as close as possible to the intent of the stricken position.
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63.

64.

65.

66.

67.

68

69.

The remedies of the Parties provided for in this Agreement are cumulative and are in
addition to any remedies available to the Parties at law or in equity. No remedy will be
deemed to exclude or restrict the right of a Party to any other remedies against the other
Party and a Party may from time to time have recourse to one or more of the remedies
specified in this Agreement or at law notwithstanding the termination of this Agreement.

Each Party shall execute such further and other documents and instruments and do such
further and other acts as may be necessary to implement and carry out the provisions and
intent of this Agreement.

The Contract Documents constitute the entire agreement between the Parties with
respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersede all previous communications,
representations and agreements, whether oral or written, with respect to the subject
matter hereof.

This Agreement shall not be amended except as specifically agreed in writing by both the
Board and Tennis BC.

The Board may at its option, withhold and set-off against any amount owing to Tennis BC
(whether under this Agreement or otherwise) any amounts payable by Tennis BC to the
Board (whether under this Agreement or otherwise) and the amount of any damages
suffered or claims made or to be made by the Board as a result of any other claim it may
have against Tennis BC, whether such claim is at law or in equity or tort or on any other
basis.

. This Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Board and Tennis BC

and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts each of which will
constitute an original and together will constitute one and the same Agreement. This
Agreement may be executed by the Parties electronically or by facsimile and if so
executed and transmitted, this Agreement will be for all purposes as effective as if the
Parties had delivered an executed original Agreement.
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As evidence of their agreement to be bound by the above contract terms, the Board and
Tennis BC each have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first above written.

CITY OF VANCOUVER

Susan Jing Su
Category Manager, Supply Chain Management

VANCOUVER BOARD OF PARKS AND RECREATION

Daisy Chin
Director of Recreation

TENNIS BRITISH COLUMBIA

Mark Roberts, CEO
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SCHEDULE A
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From: Araujo, Sev

Sent: Tuesday, September 8, 2020 5:56 PM

To: Sangalang, Ellen; Ma, Mary (Park Board); Marousek, Michael
Cc: McDonald, Erica; Erickson, Zack; Collins, Tim

Subject: Tennis Management contract (RFP PS20191554)

| am actually looking to ensure PB has the executed Tennis BC contract to manage the courts as per the RFP
Michael?
Zack, assuming Tennis BC storage agreement filed away in both formats

Sev Araujo

Manager, Commercial Operations
Vancouver Park Board, City of Vancouver
0. 604 257 8436 / f. 604 257 8427
Email: Sev.Araujo@vancouver.ca

From: Sangalang, Ellen

Sent: Friday, August 28, 2020 5:08 PM

To: Araujo, Sev

Cc: Ma, Mary (Park Board)

Subject: FW: Tennis BC 3 year Storage Licence and Tennis Management contract (RFP PS20191554)

I don’t understand why you are following up. Mary already emailed you this unless you were referring to a different
agreement?
Thanks.

Ellen

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
2) mailing one original to TennisBC
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

On Jun 19, 2020, at 10:39 AM, Ma, Mary (Park Board) <mary.ma@vancouver.ca> wrote:

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

1. Office area/lwork space for our day to day employee to use

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
I’m waiting to hear back from Doug by end of the week, If not I will get locksmith out

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
| would like to see the storage room — did you get the key yet?

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

On May 20, 2020, at 9:33 AM, Marousek, Michael <Michael.Marousek@vancouver.ca> wrote:

\u-257 ?
Tim,

| find an old email that shows VTA should occupy room 124A.
Can you please confirm this?
Shall I assume that if this is correct, Tennis BC can occupy room 142?

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

Sent: Tuesday, May 19, 2020 10:14 AM
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
| added a few comments in GREEN. City of Vancouver - FOI 2021-120 - Page 742 of 874



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

Hi Michad
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I hope you had a nice weekend and enjoyed the weather.

| understand the tennis courts were packed which is great aslong as the rules were
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

1. Accessto the small office on site (isit locked currently and who has the keys
for us?) (Isthisthe space under the SP Brewing Building?) | supposeitis— |
have never been on the premises (beyond the tennis courts). | haven’t seen
anything regarding this space in the License Agreement though. Are they
supposed to get access to it?

Not sure why they are asking about it was it in the proposal?, Jessica can
confirm
2. A list of contacts from the park board and city for a variety of requirements we
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
Emily Dunlop, Doug Shearer) — is this the Planning team? Why are they in charge of
signage? Should Comms not be included? Would it be John’s team that would
physically remove the outdated signage? The staff above are planning and
development and area part of the SP strategy team.
4. Storage unit approvals Guys Pottinger / John Odong / Amit (however thisis unlikely
to be approved other then for the tournament) OK.
5. Any documentation that we might need on site.(not sure what thisis asking?, |
would defer this to Parks Ops and Recreation) | will clarify with Mark.

I know you are very busy so hopefully there is someone who can work with us directly
and | don’t need to bother you.

Regards
Mark

Mark Roberts

CEO Tennis BC
www.tennisbc.org [tennisbc.org]
604 737 3086 #9

<image001l.jpg>

<mime-attachment>
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LICENCE AGREEMENT

TENNIS STORAGE
WITHIN A PORTION OF THE STANLEY PARK BREWING BUILDING
SITUATE AT 8901 STANLEY PARK DRIVE (THE “BUILDING”)

THIS LICENCE AGREEMENT is effective as of June 15, 2020 (the “Commencement Date”),

BETWEEN:
CITY OF VANCOUVER,
as represented by its Board of Parks and Recreation
2099 Beach Avenue
Vancouver, British Columbia
V6G 1724
(the “Park Board”)

AND:

TENNIS BC (SOCIETY),
having offices at

200 -112 3™ Ave

Vancouver, British Columbia
V5T 1C8

(the “Licensee”)

LICENCE That portion of the Building as shown on Schedule “A” and labetled “Rm 142 Exterior
Storage Area: 109 sf” (the “Licence Area”). The Building is situated on a portion of
those lands (the “Lands”) commonly known as Stanley Park and tegally described as:
Parcel identifier: 016-019-067
Legal Description: Stanley Park, title number 863701

TERM: Two (2) years, six (6) months and sixteen (16) days, from the Commencement Date to

December 31, 2022, subject to earlier termination as provided herein.

LICENCE FEE: $1.00

[01241053v1} Page 1
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LICENCE AGREEMENT

(c) All Risk Contractor’s Equipment or Property Insurance covering all equipment owned or
rented by or on behalf of the Licensee, for all risks of loss or damage with coverage
sufficient to allow for immediate replacement,

and the Licensee will provide the Park Board with satisfactory proof of such coverage prior to
commencement of the Term. The Licensee will ensure that the insurance set out above:

(e) shall not be cancelled or endorsed to reduce the coverage limit without thirty (30)
days’ prior notice in writing to the Park Board. Should the policy be endorsed to
restrict coverage midterm, notice or such restriction will be provided in writing to the
Park Board no later than the effective date of such change;

(f) if property insurance (as opposed to liability) insurance, contain a waiver of
subrogation in favour of the Park Board and its employees and agents;

(9) with respect to Commercial General Liability (CGL) insurance, specifically name the
City of Vancouver and the Vancouver Board of Parks and Recreation as additional

insureds;

(h) be issued by a company or companies authorized to issue insurance policies in British
Columbia;

(i) be primary insurance with respect to all claims arising out of the operations of the

Licensee and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Park Board shall be in
excess of this insurance and shall not contribute to it; and

5} be issued on a policy form acceptable to the City’s Chief Risk Officer and contain such
other terms and conditions satisfactory to the City’s Chief Risk Officer.

5. USE
The Licensee shall use the Licence Area for the Purpose and for no other purpose whatsoever.
6. REGULATIONS AND BY-LAWS

The Licensee shall, at its own expense, comply with and abide by all laws, by-laws and lawful
orders which touch and concern the Licence Area, the Building and the Lands.

7. NO ASSIGNMENT

The rights granted to the Licensee hereby are personal to the Licensee and the Licensee may
not assign, licence, part with, mortgage, encumber or otherwise transfer these rights without the prior
written consent of the Park Board, which consent may be unreasonably or arbitrarily withheld.

8. LICENCE AREA LICENSED “AS IS”

The Licensee acknowledges that the Park Board has made no representations or warranties as
to the state of repair of the Licence Area, the Building or the Lands, the safety of the Licence Area,
the Building or the Lands, the location of any utilities or Park Board works thereon, the stability or
state of the soil thereon, or the suitability of the Licence Area, the Building or the Lands for any
business, activity or purpose whatsoever. The Park Board shall not be obliged to furnish any services or
facilities or to make repairs or alterations in or to the Licence Area.

{01241053v1}
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LICENCE AGREEMENT

9. UTILITIES, SERVICES AND FUTURE MAINTENANCE

The Licensee shall be responsible for all directly metered utilities and services provided to the
Licence Area (if any), and shall pay the Parks Board twenty five dollars ($25.00) per month towards
the cost of shared utilities and services used in or supplied to the Licence Area as well as the cost of
future maintenance of the Licence Area.

10. LICENSEE’S COVENANTS
During the Term the Licensee shall, at the Licensee's cost:

(a) not permit or suffer waste or injury to the Licence Area, the Building, the Lands or any
part thereof and shall not use or occupy or permit to be used or occupied the Licence
Area or any part thereof for any unlawful purpose;

(b) assume responsibility for the day-to-day maintenance of the Licence Area;

() not carry out or cause to be carried out any additions, renovations, redecorations or
alterations to the Licence Area without the Parks Board’s prior written consent, which
may be arbitrarily withheld;

(d) maintain the Licence Area in a sanitary, neat, tidy and safe condition and free from
nuisance at all times;

(e) not release, dump, spill, store or place, or allow to be released, dumped, spilled,
stored or released on or in the Licence Area, the Building or the Lands any waste or
hazardous waste (as defined in the Environmental Management Act (British Columbia),
as amended), or any toxic substance (as defined in the Canadian Environmental
Protection Act, 1999 (Canada), as amended) or any matter which the British Columbia
Ministry of Environment considers a risk to the environment or to human health;

) if the Licensee contravenes Section 10(e) above, cleanup any Contaminants which the
Licensee released or permitted to be released on or in the Lands, the Building or the
Licence Area contrary to Section 10(e) to the satisfaction of the Park Board;

(2) repair any damage caused to the Licence Area, the Building or the Lands by the
Licensee or any person for whom it is responsible at law to the satisfaction of the Park
Board; and

(h) not, for any reason, use, occupy or obstruct any area of the Lands or the Building

outside of the Licence Area, including any sidewalk or pathway, without the prior
written consent of the Park Board.

11. INDEMNITY

The Licensee shall release, indemnify and save harmless the Park Board and its officials,
officers, agents and employees from all costs, losses, damages, builder's liens, compensation and
expenses of any nature whatsoever relating to or arising from the Licensee’s occupation and/or use of
the Licence Area and from all actions, claims, demands, suits and judgments against the Park Board or
its officials, officers, agents and employees on account of injury or death occurring in or about the
Licence Area, damage to or loss of property occurring in or about the Licence Area, builders liens
arising from the work of the Licensee or relating to or arising from the Licensee's occupation and/or
use of the Licence Area (including claims under the Occupier’s Liability Act).

{01241053v1}
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LICENCE AGREEMENT

12. DEFAULT

If the Licensee breaches any provision of this Agreement and fails to remedy the same within
five (5) business days of receipt of notice from the Park Board (or, in the case of emergencies,
immediately), the Park Board may immediately terminate this Agreement.

13. RESTORATION

Prior to the end of the Term of this Agreement, the Licensee shall restore the Licence Area to
the condition it was in, suitable for its use, immediately prior to the commencement of the Term to
the satisfaction of the Park Board.

14. EARLY TERMINATION

The parties hereto agree that the Licensee may, at any time during the Term, terminate this
Agreement and the licence granted hereby upon giving the Park Board five (5) days’ written notice.
Upon notice of termination being given, this Agreement and the licence granted hereby shall terminate
at the end of such five (5) day period and the Park Board shall be entitled to re-enter the Licence Area
and re-take possession in the same manner and to the same extent as if the Term had been determined
by effluxion of time.

15. BUILDER’S LIENS
The Licensee shall not permit any builders or similar liens, charge or encumbrance to be
registered on title to the Lands. If any such liens, charge or encumbrance are registered on title to the
Lands, the Licensee shall immediately pay into court or otherwise the amount required to discharge
same.
16. TIME 1S OF THE ESSENCE
Time shall be of the essence of this Agreement, save as herein and otherwise provided.
17. PARK BOARD'S REMEDIES ARE CUMULATIVE
The remedies provided to the Park Board herein are cumulative and are in addition to any
remedies to the Park Board available at law or in equity including injunctive relief. No remedy shall be
exclusive and the Park Board may have recourse to any or all remedies simultaneously or at various
times.
18. DELIVERY OF NOTICES
Any notice required to be given hereunder may be delivered as follows:
(@) to the Park Board:
City of Yancouver
c/o Park Board Head Office
2099 Beach Avenue
Vancouver, BC V6G 124

Attention: Director, Recreation

(b) to the Licensee:

{01241053v1}
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LICENCE AGREEMENT

Tennis BC (Society)
200 - 112 3" Ave.
Vancouver, BC V5T 1C8

Attention: Chief Executive Officer

19. HEADINGS

The headings appearing in this Agreement have been inserted for reference and as a matter of
convenience and in no way define, limit or enlarge the scope or meaning of this Agreement or any
provisions thereof.

20. RELATIONSHIP

It is the express intention of the Park Board and the Licensee that the granting of this licence
will not create between the Park Board and the Licensee a landlord and tenant relationship. It is
specifically agreed that this Agreement does not grant an interest in land to the Licensee.

21. APPLICABLE LAW

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
Province of British Columbia.

22. PERMANENT PUBLIC PARK

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement, if the Licence Area ceases to be a
permanent public park pursuant to section 488 of the Vancouver Charter, then this Agreement and the
licence granted hereunder will be terminable at the option of the Park Board but all obligations of the
Licensee up to the date of any such termination will survive such termination. Upon termination
pursuant to this Section 22, at the option of the Licensee and subject to any required approval of
Vancouver City Council or the Park Board, the Park Board may enter into a separate licence agreement
with the Licensee on the same terms and conditions of this Agreement, including the prorated licence
fee, for the remaining balance of the Term. Should the Licensee not exercise its option to enter into
such licence agreement, any licence fee paid to the Park Board hereunder will be prorated and the
fees for the remaining balance of the Term will be returned to the Licensee.

23. NO INTEREST IN LAND

The licence granted in this Agreement will not be construed as creating any interest in land
whatsoever.

24, NON-DEROGATION

Nothing contained or implied in this Agreement will derogate from the obligations of the
Licensee under any other agreement with the Park Board or prejudice or affect the Park Board’s rights,
powers, duties or obligations in the exercise of its functions pursuant to the Vancouver Charter as
amended from time to time and the rights, powers, duties and obligations of the Park Board under all
public and private statutes, by-laws, orders and regulations, which may be as fully and effectively
exercised in relation to the Lands and the Building as if this Agreement had not been executed and
delivered by Licensee and the Park Board.

25. INDEPENDENT LEGAL ADVICE

The Licensee confirms that it has obtained independent legal advice before executing this
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

{01323393v13} 4
PS20191554

City of Vancouver - FOI 2021-120 - Page 756 of 874



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

s.17(1) plus any applicable taxes;
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

{01323393v13} 14
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

{01323393v13} 15
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SCHEDULE A
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1/14/2020 12:43:14 PM

PS# PS20191554 - Provision of Services for Stanley Park Tennis Court Management-
Tennis BC

PastedGraphic-1.tiff

Final RFP Submission TBC.pdf

TABLE D FINANCIALS YEAR 2.xlsx

TABLE D FINANCIALS YEAR 1.xlsx

Mark Roberts
CEO Tennis BC

604 737 3086 #9

City of Vancouver - FOI 2021-120 - Page 769 of 874



City of Vancouver - FOI 2021-120 - Page 770 of 874






City of Vancouver - FOI 2021-120 - Page 772 of 874






City of Vancouver - FOI 2021-120 - Page 774 of 874









City of Vancouver - FOI 2021-120 - Page 777 of 874



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. PS20191554
PROVISION OF SERVICES FOR STANLEY PARK TENNIS COURT MANAGEMENT
PART C - FORM OF PROPOSAL

Key Personnel

In the space below, identify and provide professional biographical information for the key personnel
that would perform the Proponent’s work, outlining their intended roles in performing the Scope of
Work. If appropriate, also attach to this Form of Proposal as an additional Appendix CVs and a
complete organization chart, identifying all roles and areas of responsibility. Describe experience and
qualifications as related to the scope of work.

Alternative Solutions

If, in addition to proposing services which meet the Scope of Work, the Proponent wishes to offer an
alternative or alternatives, the alternative solution(s) should be described in the space provided
below. Any pricing impact of the alternative solution(s) should also be provided.

Supplier Diversity

Please note that these Supplier Diversity questions are optional and will not form part of the
evaluation of this RFP. Proponent answers to Supplier Diversity questions are for information
gathering purposes only and will be kept confidential in accordance with the Legal Terms and
Conditions of this RFP.

In the space below, indicate the Proponent’s company profile with regards to social value and
economic inclusion supporting equity, diversity, inclusion and reconciliation, including
social/environmental certifications, workforce diversity and/or if owned/controlled by an equity-
seeking demographic (including but not limited to non-profit, cooperative, Women, Indigenous
Peoples, Ethno-cultural People (minorities, newcomers, immigrants), persons with disabilities or
LGBTQ+ people).

Majority owned/controlled/ by: | Workforce Diversity: Social / Environmental
7 Women JFO % Women Certifications
. N R BCorp
{1 Indigenous Peoples % Indigenous Peoples
: Soci
Non-Profit/Charity ’(;l@ % Ethno-cultural People "~ BuySocial
(Social Enterprise) 3 Supplier Diversity

% People with Disabilities Certification

Coop % LGBTQ+

% Other: please indicate

. _ 71 Fairtrade
Community Contribution

Green Business

December 6, 2019 Page C-10
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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. PS20191554
PROVISION OF SERVICES FOR STANLEY PARK TENNIS COURT MANAGEMENT
PART C - FORM OF PROPOSAL

Corporation (3C/CCC) Certification (ie. LEED,
1 Ethno-cultural Persons ClimateSmart)

People with Disabilities [ Other: please indicate
7 LGBTQ+
£1  Other: please indicate

December 6, 2019 Page C-11
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DESIGNATED SAFE AREAS:

Page 4

Safe Area #1: grassy field west of tennis courts

Safe Area #1: tennis courts beside Tennis BC trailer

o
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Stanley
Small Dog

y.Park Brewing
atirant & Brewpub

anley. Park
nnis Courts
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: SAFE AREA #1 SAFE AREA #2

Stanley Park Lawn
Bowling Club
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a) repeated conduct, comments, displays, actions or gestures with a lasting, harmful
effect on the Employee; or

b) a single, serious improper or unacceptable interaction, incident, event or situation
that has a lasting, harmful effect on the Employee.

Bullying and Harassment can occur even where there is no intention to bully or harass.

2. Unlawful discrimination

Discrimination is improper or unacceptable conduct that is related or connected to a prohibited
ground of discrimination in employment under the applicable provincial human rights legislation
(“Discrimination”). Prohibited grounds of discrimination, which may vary by province, may
include race, colour, ancestry, place of origin, political belief, religion, marital status, family
status, physical disability, mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or
expression, age, or conviction of a criminal or summary conviction offence that is unrelated to
employment or intended employment.

Sexual harassment is a form of Discrimination. Workplace sexual harassment can involve
unwelcome words or actions associated with sex, sexual orientation or gender identity or
expression that are known or reasonably ought to be known to be offensive, embarrassing,
humiliating or demeaning to the Employee or a group of Employees. Such conduct includes,
without limitation, unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favours, and other verbal
or physical conduct of a sexual nature particularly when: (i) submission to the conduct is made
either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of employment or a basis for employment
decisions; or (ii) the conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an
Employee’s work performance by creating a humiliating, intimidating, hostile or sexually
offensive work environment.

3. Conduct that is not considered Bullying and Harassment or Discrimination

Not every unpleasant or negative interaction, incident, event or situation in the workplace is
Bullying and Harassment or Discrimination.

Nothing in this policy restricts the legitimate and good faith exercise of supervisory or
managerial rights and responsibilities, without limitation:

a) giving advice;
b) assigning, scheduling or changing work;
c) performance appraisal;
d) performance or behaviour correction;
e) discipline or termination of employment for cause; and
f) reasonable action taken by a supervisor or manager relating to the management and
direction of the Employee and the workplace.
Policies & Procedures — Respectful Workplace Page 2 of 6
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The following conduct is also not considered Bullying and Harassment or Discrimination within
the scope of this policy:

a) respectful discussion of different points of view;

b) the freedom of individuals to choose with whom to socialize in activities not related to
the workplace;

c) interpersonal conflicts or relations unless humiliating, intimidating or threatening to
health or safety; and

d) different communication styles so long as those communication styles are within the
reasonable limits of respectful workplace interactions.

C. REPORTING AND INVESTIGATING

1. General

Employees are expected to report all alleged or suspected Bullying and Harassment or
Discrimination to a supervisor or manager as soon as possible after experiencing or witnessing
the interaction, incident, event or situation of concern.

All complaints of alleged or suspected Bullying and Harassment or Discrimination will be
investigated by Tennis B.C. or its delegate.

In order to encourage timely resolution, complaints of alleged or suspected Discrimination
made more than six months after the interaction, incident, event or situation experienced or
witnessed may not be accepted for response by Tennis B.C..

2. Reporting process for all Employees

An Employee who believes that he or she has experienced Bullying and Harassment or
Discrimination, or an Employee who believes that he or she has witnessed Bullying and
Harassment or Discrimination (the “Complainant”), should follow the below procedure:

a) If possible and the Complainant is comfortable doing so, he or she should calmly
approach the alleged offender (the “Respondent”) and inform the Respondent that his or
her behaviour is offensive, unwelcome and contrary to Tennis B.C.’s policy and ask that
it immediately stop and not be repeated.

b) If the Complainant is not comfortable approaching the Respondent or if the situation does
not resolve, the Complainant should bring the matter to the attention of his or her
supervisor or manager or Human Resources.

c) Complainants can report alleged or suspected Bullying and Harassment or
Discrimination verbally or in writing.

As soon as possible after a report is made, the Complainant will be asked to provide a
full account, to the best of his or her ability, regarding the interaction, incident, event or
situation in question. The account will generally be in writing (except in extraordinary
circumstances) and should include:

¢ names of the parties involved,;

Policies & Procedures ~ Respectful Workplace Page 3 of 6
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s names of any witnesses;

+ location, date and time of the alleged or suspected Bullying and Harassment or
Discrimination;

» details about the interaction, incident, event or situation, including any
photographs, documents, e-mails or other physical or electronic evidence; and

« anything further that is relevant and would assist in the investigation.

In the event that a Complainant does not proceed with a formal complaint, Tennis B.C. may still
initiate an investigation if deemed necessary to ensure workplace health and safety and comply
with any applicable statutory or legal obligation.

The procedure outlined in and supporting this policy does not prevent a Complainant from filing
a complaint or claim under human rights or occupational health and safety legislation, or
making a police report.

D. RESPONSE TO COMPLAINTS

Tennis B.C. will promptly respond to all complaints it receives. Its response to complaints may
range from facilitative intervention to a traditional investigation.

After receiving a complaint, in some cases, Tennis B.C. may take steps to address immediate
concerns, such as safety, prior to coming to a determination on the merits of the complaint.

1. Facilitative intervention (informal)

Facilitative intervention may include, without limitation:

a) coaching the Complainant on how to approach the Respondent to pursue resolution;

b) educating the Complainant and the Respondent about Tennis B.C.’s policy;

c) reinforcing behavioural guidelines and expectations with the Complainant and the
Respondent; and

d) pursuing and facilitating mediation between the Complainant and the Respondent.

2. Traditional investigation (formal)

If facilitative intervention is unsuccessful or not appropriate due to the nature of the complaint or
the preferences of the Complainant and the Respondent, an investigation will be initiated as
deemed necessary or appropriate by Tennis B.C.

Investigations will:

a) be undertaken promptly and conducted diligently and in as thorough a manner as
necessary in all the circumstances;

b) be fair and impartial, providing both the Complainant and the Respondent with a
reasonable opportunity to provide their account of events and respond to the other
party’s account;

c) be sensitive to the interests of all parties involved; and

d) maintain confidentiality to the extent practicable in the circumstances, recognizing
that the Respondent will be informed in all cases of the identity of the Complainant

Policies & Procedures — Respectful Workplace Page 4 of 6
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and the nature of the complaint.

All Employees are expected to cooperate with the investigator and provide full details, to the
best of their ability, of the interaction, incident, event or situation they have experienced or
witnessed.

E. CONFIDENTIALITY

To protect the interests of the Complainant, Respondent and witnesses, confidentiality shall be
maintained throughout the complaint process to the extent permitted by the investigation and
in accordance with applicable privacy legislation and other legal requirements.

All participants in the investigation are expected to keep confidential all discussions and
interactions with the investigator and information and records related to the complaint. A failure
to maintain confidentiality may result in disciplinary consequences.

Human Resources will keep and retain investigation records in accordance with the applicable
legislation. Such records will be stored in a confidential file maintained and accessed only by
the Human Resources Manager or his or her delegate. If a complaint is not substantiated, no
documentation of the complaint will be placed on the personnel file of the Respondent.

F. FOLLOW-UP AND CORRECTIVE OR DISCIPLINARY ACTION

If at any time during the investigation the complaint can be resolved to the satisfaction of the
Complainant and in a manner acceptable to the Respondent and Tennis B.C., the resolution
will be documented, and a copy sent to the Complainant and the Respondent.

The Complainant and the Respondent will be notified of the findings and conclusions made as
a result of the investigation. In appropriate circumstances and at its discretion, Tennis B.C. may
provide the Complainant, the Respondent and others with additional information relating to the
investigation.

Any Employee determined by Tennis B.C. to be responsible for Bullying and Harassment or
Discrimination in violation of this policy will be subject to appropriate corrective or disciplinary
action, up to and including termination of employment for cause, cancellation of contract or
removal from the Board.

G. REQUEST FOR REVIEW

The Complainant or the Respondent may seek a review of the outcome of a Bullying and
Harassment or Discrimination investigation by notifying the Human Resources Manager or his or
her delegate in writing within thirty (30) days of being notified of the conclusion of the
investigation. The Complainant or the Respondent must provide specific reasons for seeking a
review.

The Human Resources Manager or his or her delegate will only undertake a review where it
appears that there is a legitimate concern about the investigation and its outcome.

Policies & Procedures — Respectful Workplace Page 5 of 6
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H. FABRICATED, MALICIOUS, FRIVOLOUS OR VEXATIOUS COMPLAINT

A complaint of Bullying and Harassment or Discrimination is a serious matter. If Tennis B.C.
determines that an Employee has made a complaint that is fabricated, malicious, frivolous or
vexatious, he or she will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination of
employment for cause, cancellation of contract or removal from the Board. Repeated
unfounded complaints may in appropriate circumstances be considered fabricated, malicious,
frivolous or vexatious and result in disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal from
employment for cause, cancellation of contract or removal from the Board. Note that where a
complaint is unsubstantiated or based on mistake, it will not necessarily be considered
fabricated, malicious, frivolous or vexatious.

I RETALIATION PROHIBITED

It is a violation of this policy to retaliate in any way against an Employee who has raised a good
faith concern or made a bona fide report about Bullying and Harassment or Discrimination, or
against a witness, investigator, decision maker or other person who has cooperated or
participated in a Bullying and Harassment or Discrimination investigation. Any person who
experiences such retaliation must immediately report their concern to the complaint investigator
or human resources. ...

Tennis B.C. has zero tolerance for retaliation contrary to this policy. Disciplinary action will be
taken against an Employee who engages in retaliatory conduct, up to and including termination
of employment for cause, cancellation of contract or removal from the Board.

Policies & Procedures — Respectful Workplace Page 6 0of 6
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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. PS20191554
PROVISION OF SERVICES FOR STANLEY PARK TENNIS COURT MANAGEMENT
PART C - FORM OF PROPOSAL

APPENDIX 3
COMMERCIAL PROPOSAL

Complete this Appendix 3 - Commercial Proposal in the form set out below.

Proponent to provide proposed pricing and payment terms, which should be in accordance with 0O,
Section 7.0 of the RFP (as well as any other sections of the RFP imposing requirements as to pricing).

The Price to complete all of the Work is apportioned in accordance with the following table. The

prices shown in each of the numbered rows of the table shall include (i) all labour, material,
equipment and other costs, (ii} overhead and profit, (iii) PST, and (iv) all other taxes, duties,
assessments, charges and fees, except for GST.

Provide expected annual revenues and costs for the first year of operations and clarify how the PB will
benefit financially from this arrangement. Provide as many details as possible. Explain any planned
changes from Year One operations in the final row.

December 6, 2019 Page C-17
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TABLE D YEAR 1

DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY ANNUAL AMOUNT

GROSS REVENUE:

Revenue from operations

court rentals $10,709
Lessons $101,904
Leagues in court rental
Ladders in court rental
Tournaments $13,440
Other

TOTAL GROSS REVENUE (A}|$126,053

EXPENSES

Operating expenses (provide detailed

description of activies/expenses)

Labour (Coaching and staff labour on site) $78,965
Variable operating costs (balls, supplies, charge

cards) $6,072
Variable marketing costs (3% of Revenue) $3,782
Fixed Costs {repairs, cleaning, technology,

insurance) $18,400 $107,219

MANAGEMENT FEES (Provide Description)

Corportate overhead allocation recovery 5% $6,303
Tennis BC Operating Income $2,532 $8,835

TOTAL EXPENSES (B):|$116,053

NET REVENUE TO THE CITY/PARK BOARD {A-B)

Total Gross Revenue minus total expenses $10,000
Tennis BC will work with the city to define minimum rent to the city for courts and a profit split formula as
salesincrease.

What Financial deviations could occur in Year two and/or three of the contract? SEE YEAR 2 TABLE D
ATTACHED for sales increases expected with full year marketing
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TABLE D YEAR 2

DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY

ANNUAL AMOUN

GROSS REVENUE:

Revenue from operations

court rentals $17,848
Lessons $169,839
Leagues in court rental
Ladders in court rental

Tournaments $13,440

Other

TOTAL GROSS REVENUE {A)|$201,127
EXPENSES
Operating expenses {provide detailed
description of activies/expenses)
Labour {Coaching and staff labour on site) $100,401
Variable operating costs (balls, supplies, charge
cards) $9,833
Variable marketing costs {3% of Revenue) $6,034
Fixed Costs (repairs, cleaning, technology) $18,400 $134,668
MANAGEMENT FEES (Provide Description)
Corportate overhead allocation recovery 5% $10,056
Tennis BC Operating Income $29,802 $39,858

TOTAL EXPENSES (B):|$174,526

NET REVENUE TO THE CITY/PARK BOARD {A-B)

Total Gross Revenue minus total expenses

$26,601

What Financial deviations could occur in Year two and/or three of the contract? YEAR 3 COULD GROW
SIGNIFICANTLY WITH THE ADDITION OF NEW COURTS. NOTE THIS MODEL DOES NOT TAKE INTO

ACCOUNT ANY ADDITIONAL LOCATIONS.
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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. PS20191554
PROVISION OF SERVICES FOR STANLEY PARK TENNIS COURT MANAGEMENT
PART C - FORM OF PROPOSAL

APPENDIX 5
CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE

Appendix 5 is to be duly completed and signed by the Proponent’s insurance agent or broker as
evidence of its existing insurance, along with a letter from its insurance broker or agent indicating
whether or not (and, if not, then to what extent) it will be able to comply with the insurance
requirements set out in the Form of Agreement, should the Proponent be selected as a successful
Proponent. (Any successful Proponent will also be required to provide proof of the satisfaction of all
insurance requirements prior to or concurrently with the City entering into any Agreement.)

December 6, 2019 Page C-21
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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. PS20191554
PROVISION OF SERVICES FOR STANLEY PARK TENNIS COURT MANAGEMENT
PART C - FORM OF PROPOSAL

APPENDIX 7
PERSONAL INFORMATION CONSENT FORM(S)

Complete one copy of this Appendix 7 - Personal Information Consent Form(s), in the form set out
below, for each key personnel for whom a CV or other information regarding employment history and
qualifications has been included in the Proposal.

PERSONAL INFORMATION CONSENT FORM

Reference #P520191554

Title: Provision of Services for Stanley Park Tennis Court Management

With the provision of my signature at the foot of this statement |, __Sarah Kadi

(Print  Name)

consent to the indirect collection from __Tennis British Columbia

(Print Name of Proponent) of

my personal information in the form of a work history, resume or summary of qualifications.

In consenting to this indirect collection, | understand that my personal information, so collected, will
be used by the City for the sole purpose of evaluating the submitted response to the above-noted
procurement process. | understand further that my personal information, once collected by the City,
will be handled by the City in accordance with the provisions of the (BC) Freedom of Information and
Protection of Privacy Act.

Sarah Kadi January 13, 2020
Signature Date
December 6, 2019 Page C-24
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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. PS20191554
PROVISION OF SERVICES FOR STANLEY PARK TENNIS COURT MANAGEMENT

PART C - FORM OF PROPOSAL

APPENDIX 8
SUBCONTRACTORS

Complete this Appendix 8 - Subcontractors in the form set out below by listing all of the subcontractors
that the Proponent proposes to use in carrying out its work under an Agreement, or state that the
Proponent does not propose to use any subcontractors.

If selected to enter into an Agreement with the City, the Proponent may be limited to using
subcontractors listed in its Proposal. If the City objects to a subcontractor listed in a Proposal, the City
may permit a Proponent to propose a substitute Subcontractor acceptable to the City.

Subcontracted Scope

WeE WL RDET UHE SUDCatITRACTERLS

Subcontractor

Contact (name, title, email,
telephone no.)

Approximate Percent of the
Work to be Subcontracted

Social Value Business - shall
mean a business that has a
recognized environmental or
social certification and/or is
majority owned/controlled by
an equity-seeking demographic
(including but not limited to

non-profit, cooperative,
Women, Indigenous Peoples,
Ethno-cultural People
(minorities, newcomers,

immigrants), persons  with
disabilities or LGBTQ+ people).

In the space below, detail the Proponent’s proposed use of Social
Value Businesses as sub-contractors/consultants (if any) and
provide brief company profiles of those Social Value Businesses
and descriptions of how they qualify as Social Value Businesses.

The Subcontractor’s Relevant
Experience (identify at least
three similar projects within
the last five years, including
the client)

1. Project Name:

Client:

Nature of Work:

December 6, 2019
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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. PS20191554

PROVISION OF SERVICES FOR STANLEY PARK TENNIS COURT MANAGEMENT

PART C - FORM OF PROPOSAL

Value:

Client Contact:

Project Name:

Client:

Nature of Work:

Value:

Client Contact:

Project Name:

Client:

Nature of Work:

Value:

Client Contact:

December 6, 2019

Page C-26
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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. PS20191554
PROVISION OF SERVICES FOR STANLEY PARK TENNIS COURT MANAGEMENT
PART C - FORM OF PROPOSAL

APPENDIX 10
CONFLICTS; COLLUSION; LOBBYING

Complete this APPENDIX 10 - Conflicts; Collusion; Lobbying in the form set out below by setting out any
exceptions to the declarations in Section 9 of the Legal Terms and Conditions attached as Appendix 1
to this Part C - Form of Proposal or indicate that there are no exceptions, as applicable.

Exceptions to Declaration as to no Conflict of
Interest in RFP Process (Section 9.1 of Legal Terms
and Conditions)

Vo excep Read

Exceptions to Declaration as to No Conflict of
Interest Respecting Proposed Supply (Section 9.2
of Legal Terms and Conditions)

N e %)4(‘, E,QXA\DVLS

Exceptions to Declaration as to No Collusion
(Section 9.3 of Legal Terms and Conditions)

Do Sxcephens

Exceptions to Declarations as to No Lobbying
(Section 9.4 of Legal Terms and Conditions})

Ne Exceehens

December 6, 2019
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Assessment Department Location Clearance Section
SAFE BC | mailing Address 6951 Westminster Highway ~ Telephone 604 244 6380

PO Box 5350 Richmond BC Toll Free within Canada
WORKING TO MAKE A DIFFERENCE  Station Terminal V7C 1C6 1 888 922 2768
Vancouver BC V6B 5L5 www.worksafebc.com Fax 604 244 6390
City of Vancouver January 13, 2020

453 West 12th Avenue
VANCOUVER, BC V5Y 1v4

Person/Business : TENNIS - BRITISH COLUMBIA
Account number : 604031

We confirm that the above-mentioned account is currently active and in good standing.

This firm has had continuous coverage with us since May 01, 1999 and has satisfied
assessment remittance requirements to January 01, 2020.

The next payment that will affect this firm's clearance status is due on January 20, 2020.

This information is only provided for the purposes of Section 51 of the Workers Compensation Act,
which indicates that a person using a contractor or subcontractor to perform work may be
responsible for unpaid assessments of the contractor or subcontractor.

Employer Service Centre
Assessment Department

Clearance Reference # : C131395919
CLRA1A

Now you can report payroll and pay premiums online.
Visit www.worksafebc.com

Please refer to your account number in your correspondence or when contacting the Assessment Department.
To alter this document constitutes fraud.

-1-
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( Board of Directors )

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

President
Mark Braidwood

CEO
Mark Roberts

DEVELOP YOUR GAME GET INTO THE GAME & SUPPORT THE GAME
GROW THE GAME
PLAYER DEVELOPMENT COMMUNITY TENNIS OPERATIONS ( ADMINISTRATION )
Team Leader : Sarah Kadi DEVELOPMENT Public courts operations
Davelopment pathway Coaching Certification. Indoor court operations
Schools, Communily Events, TBD

Team Tennis, Tennis
Ambassadors. League

Membership

Event Planning, Rankings, Junior Player Development Jaannle Rok Admin Support Finance
Administration. support Progressive. RRT, Futtira, Community Support Sandra Hong
Ika Setyawati 2-4 star - ITF, Nationals
Danielia Silva Rosemary Erb

REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT Communic:a_lions &
Vancouver Island: Eric Knoester Markehr}g
Interior: Joachim Nierfeld Khristina Blajkevitch
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TABLE D YEAR 2

DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY

ANNUAL AMOUNT

GROSS REVENUE:

Revenue from operations

court rentals $17,848
Lessons $169,839
Leagues in court rental
Ladders in court rental

Tournaments $13,440
Other
TOTAL GROSS REVENUE (A)[$201,127

EXPENSES
Operating expenses (provide detailed description
of activies/expenses)
Labour (Coaching and staff labour on site) $100,401
Variable operating costs (balls, supplies, charge
cards) $9,833
Variable marketing costs (3% of Revenue) $6,034
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

NET REVENUE TO THE CITY/PARK BOARD (A-B)

Total Gross Revenue minus total expenses

$26,601

What Financial deviations could occur in Year two and/or three of the contract? YEAR 3 COULD GROW

SIGNIFICANTLY WITH THE ADDITION OF NEW COURTS. NOTE THIS MODEL DOES NOT TAKE INTO ACCOUNT ANY

ADDITIONAL LOCATIONS.
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TABLE D

YEAR 1

DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY

ANNUAL AMOUNT

GROSS REVENUE:

Revenue from operations

court rentals $10,709
Lessons $101,904
Leagues in court rental
Ladders in court rental

Tournaments $13,440

Other

TOTAL GROSS REVENUE (A)($126,053

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

Fixed Costs (repairs, cleaning, technology,

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

Tennis BC will work with the city to define minimum rent to the city for courts and a profit split formula as sales

increase.

$10,000

What Financial deviations could occur in Year two and/or three of the contract? SEE YEAR 2 TABLE D ATTACHED

for sales increases expected with full year marketing
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TABLE D

YEAR 3

DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY

ANNUAL AMOUNT

GROSS REVENUE:

Revenue from operations

court rentals $24,682
Lessons $219,219
Leagues in court rental
Ladders in court rental

Tournaments $13,440

Other

TOTAL GROSS REVENUE (A)($257,341

EXPENSES

Operating expenses (provide detailed description
of activies/expenses)

Labour (Coaching and staff labour on site) $112,435

Variable operating costs (balls, supplies, charge

cards) $12,798

Variable marketing costs (3% of Revenue) $7,720

Fixed Costs (repairs, cleaning, technology) $18,400 $151,353
MANAGEMENT FEES (Provide Description)

Corportate overhead allocation recovery 5% $12,867

Tennis BC Operating Income $54,000 $66,867

TOTAL EXPENSES (B):|$218,220

NET REVENUE TO THE CITY/PARK BOARD (A-B)

Total Gross Revenue minus total expenses

NOTE: We have a formula for net revenue sharing with a minumum 10,000 to the city, 50% profit sharing up to

$50,000 and then 25% oroft share to the city over $50,000.

$39,121

What Financial deviations could occur in Year two and/or three of the contract? YEAR 3 COULD GROW
SIGNIFICANTLY WITH THE ADDITION OF NEW COURTS. NOTE THIS MODEL DOES NOT TAKE INTO ACCOUNT ANY

ADDITIONAL LOCATIONS.
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RATES

Court Rental Rates
Prime Time

Non Prime

Early

Ladder

League

Programs Costs

Private (Average)

Semi Private 2-4

Group 5+

Progressive 1 kids

Progressive 2 kids

Community Outreach subsidized

Mgmt Costs estimated overhead costs
Marketing Manager (estimated 10% extra time)
Accounting (estimated 20% extra time)

IT Support costs (estimated 10% extra time)
CEO Support costs

Player Development Director costs

Total mgmt cost

Coaching Costs

Head coach 1

Assistant coach 2

Assistant coach 3

Assistant coach 4

Head Coach admin retainer Apr-Sept

Staff Requirement Minimum
9am-4pm

9 am - 4 pm weekend

4pm-9pm

Base Total Costs

Benefits 13% (stat holiday included)
Total costs of Staff

Expenses Breakdown

Coaching balls & Equipment (% of Program Rev)
Supplies (% of Total Rev)

Charge Cards (% of Total Rev)

Total

FIXED OPERATING COSTS 6 Months
Court and building cleaning Fee
Building maintenance & supplies
Repairs & Maintenance estimate
Utilities Outdoors
Insurance
Communication/Technology fees (cel, tech fees, web mgmt)

Marketing Budget
Printed materials

Radio promotion 5 weeks
Signage

Total year 1

When

TBD likely 4-8pm weekdays, Weekends 9-8 pm
TBD, likely 9-4 pm weekdays

no charge

Prime time rate

Prime time rate

Students
Coaches ratio
Low $70 High $90
1 coach/court
1 coach/court
2 coaches/court
2 coaches/court
1 coach/court

S 000D

Allocation of Time

hard cost to Tennis BC as this is outsourced
hard cost to Tennis BC as this is outsourced
hard cost to Tennis BC as this is outsourced
No charge to Stanley Park, estimated 5%
No charge to Stanley Park, estimated 5%
TBC Recovery negative until year 3

Year 1
Net recovery at %5 6303
per hour
$50
$30
$25
$25
$6,000
Days hours per hour

1 0 18

2 7 18

7 5 18

Percentage of sales
2.00%
0.40%
2.80%
5.20%

5400
6000

2000
5000
18400

1000
5000
1000
7000

Year 2

Cost/Hour

$

3
3
$

14
$5-58

14
14

Cost per person/hour

v v n

Annual

Year 3

10,056 $12,867

Total

0
252
630
882

Weeks/Yr

Note recovery is only $3782 year 1

80
25
17
16
16
$0-10

4,000
6,000
3,000

$13,000.00

Coaching costs roughly 35%-45% of revenue

Annual
231 S -
231 S 5,821
23.1 S 14,553

S 20,374

S 2,649

S 23,023
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Mark Roberts
CEO Tennis BC
www.tennisbc.org
604 737 3086 #9
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Park Board Proposal

Tennis BC developed its original proposal with all of the costs estimated as closely as we could.
We want to summarize our position on the proposal’s contents and other relevant information.

e The format that the park board required for the financial proposal was an open book
format of costs and was presented as a shared profit and cost model with shared risks,
effectively a profit share model. Tennis BC raised the question about the format that
was required and how it made more sense to go with a % of revenue format. We see
that the new financial proposal is in that format however all the cost risks have now
shifted to Tennis BC

e Qur sales estimates were based upon assumptions having not run this program before
and we originally did not submit year 3 assumptions as we were cautious about
projecting that far out. While we have a variety of scenarios, we internally reviewed for
year 3, we realize that there are many variables we don’t yet know.

e In our discussions at the park board offices, we discussed Tennis BC's concern about the
paid courts not being resurfaced and how that might influence players to not want to
book on the bottom courts. This raises the risk of court rental income. It appears that
those courts will not be resurfaced in the immediate future and that will further create
sales doubt into year 2 and 3.

e The RFP required the addition of low-cost programs and price sensitivity of programs.
Tennis BC included programs that will be subsidized by our organization and that we
make no money on. In the old format of the financial submission, the Park Board shared
in the cost of those programs. In the new financial proposal, Tennis BC absorbs the cost
of those programs and we would lose money on them. With both a fixed cost rent plus
a % of sales, low cost program will lose money.

e Tennis BC proposed lower cost rental costs for booking courts during non-prime time
than in past years. The park board proposal would impact Tennis BC’s ability to keep
those prices low

e We are very concerned about the short-term impact of the Coronavirus and what
impact that could have to the coming summer sales. Just today three major tennis
tournaments in Vancouver have been cancelled, the world Tennis tour has been shelved
for 6 weeks and all major tennis events cancelled. While we knew this would be a last-
minute decision to award the RFP, we have obviously not marketed any programs nor
hired any staff. Will people be willing to sign up for any tennis lessons? Will the
Stanley Park Tournament be cancelled? Will tourism be seriously impacted this
summer? There are many scenarios that make the risk of short-term financials
concerning.
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We have reviewed the latest park board financial proposal, if we agreed to these terms, we
would lose money in year 2 and year 3. We planned on year 1 being a break-even year at best.
In our original proposal we did not “keep” any hidden numbers. We have included costs where
we can best run a professional facility at Stanley Park. While past operators may have had a
different profit model as a mom and pop, we want this to be a great example of what can
happen on public courts with professional management. We recognize that operating at the
park is a challenge with regards to having no real office space, a challenge to support
players/kids who are sick or injured with a place to rest/lie down, no significant signage allowed
etc. However, all of these challenges add up to additional costs of doing business to run a
professional facility.

Here is our counter proposal to the park board.

Year 1 We accept the $10,000 fixed amount. However it needs to be subject to renegotiation
pending the Coronavirus impact. We are prepared to have open book review of this but need
to build in this unknown to our proposal. Should we not be able to run programming or events
this would be a significant problem.

Year 2. $12,500 base sum minimum, 12% of revenues
Year3 $15,000 base sum minimum, 12 % of revenues

Tennis BC is assuming all the risk in the proposal. As a not for profit, we cannot risk losing
money and need to be prudent. We believe we can do a great job there and want to make sure
we don’t run a under-staffed facility just to avoid losses. In order for us to grow our sport we
need our resources to be placed where they can positively impact players. We think we can
grow sales significantly over a 2-3 year period and the sharing of higher revenues will add
income to the park board. We also believe that we can add future sites, thus adding revenue to
the park board. All of this allows us to put more resources to our programs, run better
programs and reduce player costs over time.
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

"Chin, Daisy" <daisy.chin@vancouver.ca>

3/20/2020 4:47:27 PM

RE: Proposal

If it’s regarding the Agreement, please contact Bruce Quayle. If regarding the RFP process, please contact Susan Jing
Su.

Thanks,

Jessica

From: McDonald, Erica

Sent: Friday, March 20, 2020 4:46 PM

To: Li, Jessica

Cc: Quayle, Bruce; Collins, Tim; Marousek, Michael; Su, Susan Jing; Chin, Daisy
Subject: Re: Proposal

Jessicawho is handling this in your absence? Regardless of what we are dealing with now | may need to discuss
further.

EricaMcDonad
Sent from my iPhone

On Mar 20, 2020, at 4:38 PM, Li, Jessica <jessica.li@vancouver.ca> wrote:

Hi Erica,

We Il need to wait a week or so until the contract is signed. | m sure G&G can understand as we are in
the middle of an emergency and uncertain times.

Thanks,

Jessica

From: McDonald, Erica

Sent: Friday, March 20, 2020 3:54 PM

To: Li, Jessica; Quayle, Bruce; Collins, Tim; Marousek, Michael
Cc: Su, Susan Jing; Chin, Daisy

Subject: RE: RE: Proposal

Jessica, we cannot wait until then to inform Gord and Gayle.
What messaging can we send now.

Erica McDonald | Manager, Recreation Services
Hillcrest Centre

604.257.6945

604.379.8611 c

From: Li, Jessica
Sent: 20 March 2020 15:40

To: Quayle, Bruce; McDonald, Erica; Collins, Tim; Marousek, Michael
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From: "Collins, Tim" <Tim.Collins@vancouver.ca>
To: "L, Jessica" <jessica.li@vancouver.ca>
"Quayle, Bruce" <bruce.quayle@vancouver.ca>
CC: "McDonald, Erica" <Erica.McDonald@vancouver.ca>
"Marousek, Michael" <Michael.Marousek@vancouver.ca>
"Su, Susan Jing" <Susanjing.Su@vancouver.ca>
Date:  4/2/2020 9:05:57 AM
Subject:  RE: PS20191554 - Agreement (draft) - Stanley Park Tennis Courts

| am ok with the
Page 2 fiv  with aresponse back TBC that the change will be accepted to this provision, with the caveat
they we reserve the right to revisit this provision in the future
Page 4 “g” — this is more of a question for Bruce.
Page 7 — Revenues - My understanding is base fee or percentage of gross revenue, whichever is higher
correct?

From: Li, Jessica

Sent: Tuesday, March 31, 2020 6:08 PM

To: Collins, Tim; Quayle, Bruce

Cc: McDonald, Erica; Marousek, Michael; Su, Susan Jing

Subject: FW: PS20191554 - Agreement (draft) - Stanley Park Tennis Courts

Hi Tim and Bruce,
Please see Tennis BC s comments below along with the attached tracked changes they made to the agreement.

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
Attached is our response to the contract. There are a couple of key issuesthat | have highlighted in the lease

with some clarification written which you can delete as needed. | want to explain them here in thisletter as
well.
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1. Financial terms. As per our conversation on the phone, I don’t know if | explained well enough our proposal
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

| hope you are all doing well. I m pleased to let you know we have approval to move forward and contract with
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

Sent: Thursday, March 12, 2020 5:09 PM )
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5/8/2020 3:40:23 PM
FW: Thoughts

More questions from Mark.

I mentioned about court rentals only to him to day when we briefly spoke. You will need to clarify our
expectations on what they can and cant do more specifically when you communicate with him.

Erica McDonald | Manager Recreation Services
t. 604.257.6945] c. 604.379.8611

| am grateful to live and work on the unceded, ancestral territories of the Musqueam, Squamish and
Tsleil Waututh Nations

From: Li, Jessica

Sent: Friday, May 8, 2020 3:33 PM
To: McDonald, Erica

Cc: mroberts@tennisbc.org
Subject: FW: Thoughts

Hi Erica,
Below are a couple more questions, from Mark yesterday.
Thanks,

Jessica

From: Mark Roberts [mailto:mroberts@tennisbc.org]
Sent: Thursday, May 7, 2020 3:07 PM

To: Li, Jessica

Subject: [EXT] Thoughts

City of Vancouver security warning: Do not click on links or open attachments unless you were
expecting the email and know the content is safe.

Hi jessica
I know we have not got a signed agreement but here are a couple of key points to consider.

1 the city websites all direct tennis players to gord and gayles contact info. The sooner we can
change that the better. | can send you links and numbers as soon as you want them

2 we are likely to see tennis down there soon. We will need access to the room down there as soon
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as possible to get ourselves organized.

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

Question — there is no reference to signage, sponsorship requirements/processes, to the storage room access or to
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

Have a look at it and let’s talk.

Regards,
Bruce
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